
 

 

 

 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
10.00 AM - TUESDAY, 28 JANUARY 2025 

 
MULTI-LOCATION MEETING - COUNCIL CHAMBER, PORT TALBOT 

& MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
ALL MOBILE TELEPHONES TO BE SWITCHED TO SILENT FOR THE 

DURATION OF THE MEETING 
 

Webcasting/Hybrid Meetings:  
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the  

Council’s Internet Site. By participating you are consenting to be filmed 
and the possible use of those images and sound recordings for 

webcasting and/or training purposes. 
 
 PART 1 

 
1.  Chairs Announcements   

 
2.  Declarations of Interest   

 
3.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
4.  To Request Site Visit(s) from the Applications Presented   

 
 Report/s of the Head of Planning and Public Protection 

 
 Section A - Matters for Decision 

 
 Planning Applications Recommended for Approval 
 
5.  Application No. P2024/ 0626- 60-61 Afan Road, Duffryn Rhondda, 

Neath Port Talbot, SA13 3ET  (Pages 9 - 22) 
Change of use of ground floor of 60-61 Afan Road, from retail unit 
(A1) to two x 1 bedroom holiday lets (C6). 

AGENDA 



 
 
6.  Application No. P2024/0234 - Land To The West Of Danygraig 

Lane, Glynneath, SA11 5LG.  (Pages 23 - 54) 
Outline application for the development of 3 x detached dwellings 
with associated works (All Matters Reserved), at  Land to the West 
Of Danygraig Lane, Between Glan Gwrelych And Ynys Y Nos 
Avenue, Glynneath, SA11 5LG. 
 

 Section B - Matters for Information 
 

7.  Appeals Determined - 9 December 2024 to 20 January 2025  
(Pages 55 - 56) 
 

8.  Delegated Decisions - 9 December 2024 to 20 January 2025  
(Pages 57 - 78) 
 

9.  Urgent Items   
Any urgent items at the discretion of the Chairperson pursuant to 
Section 100BA(6)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended). 
 

 
F.O’Brien 

Chief Executive 
 

Civic Centre 
Port Talbot Tuesday, 21 January 2025 
 



 
 
Committee Membership:  
 
Chairperson: Councillor J.Jones 

 
Vice 
Chairperson: 
 

 
Councillor T.Bowen 
 

Members: 
 

Councillors S.Paddison, D.Keogh, R.Davies, 
H.Davies, C.James, C.Jordan, S.Thomas, 
R.Mizen, P.Rogers and A.R.Aubrey  
 

Cabinet 
UDP/LDP 
Member: 

 
Councillor W.F.Griffiths  

 
Requesting to Speak at Planning Committee 
 
The public have a right to attend the meeting and address the Committee 
in accordance with the Council’s approved procedure  which is available 
at www.npt.gov.uk/planning. 
 
If you would like to speak at Planning Committee on an application 
reported to this Committee you must: 
 

 Contact Democratic Services in writing at: Civic Centre, Port Talbot 
SA13 1PJ, preferably by email: democratic.services@npt.gov.uk.  

 Ensure your request to speak is made no later than two working 
days prior to the meeting date (by 2 pm on the preceding Friday 
based on a usual Tuesday meeting),  

 Clearly indicate the item number or application number on which 
you wish to speak and confirm whether you are supporting or 
objecting to the application. 

 Give your name and address (which will be publicly available unless 
there are particular reasons for confidentiality) 

 
Please note that only one person is able to speak for each ‘category’ 
(objector; supporter; applicant/agent; Town/Community Council for each 
application.  Full details are available in the Council’s approved procedure 
 
In addition, if an objector registers to speak, the Applicant/Agent will be 
notified by the Council. 

file:///S:/Executive%202022/Regulatory/Planning%20Committee/Planning%20Committee%20-%20Public%20Attendance%20at%20Meetings.pdf
http://www.npt.gov.uk/planning
mailto:democratic.services@npt.gov.uk
file:///S:/Executive%202022/Regulatory/Planning%20Committee/Planning%20Committee%20-%20Public%20Attendance%20at%20Meetings.pdf


 
Should you wish to discuss any aspect of public speaking, please contact 
the Democratic Services Team on 01639 763713. 

Commenting on planning applications which are to be reported to 
Committee 

Should you wish to submit representations on an application presented to 
this Planning Committee, please note that these must be received by the 
Planning department no later than 2.00p.m. on the Friday before 
Committee (based on the usual Tuesday meeting).  If the meeting is not 
on a Tuesday, these should be received no later than 2.00pm on the 
penultimate working day immediately preceding the Planning Committee.  

Please note that representations received in accordance with the 
Council’s protocol are summarised and, where necessary, commented 
upon in the form of an Amendment Sheet, which is circulated to Members 
of the Planning Committee by email on the evening before Committee, 
and re-distributed prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

 
 
 



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

(MULTI-LOCATION MEETING - COUNCIL CHAMBER, PORT TALBOT 
& MICROSOFT TEAMS) 

 
Members Present:  17 December 2024 
 
 
Chairperson: Councillor J.Jones 

 
Vice Chairperson: Councillor T.Bowen 

 
Councillors: S.Paddison, D.Keogh, R.Davies, C.James, 

C.Jordan, S.Thomas, R.Mizen and A.R.Aubrey  
 

UDP/LDP Member: Councillor W.F.Griffiths 
 

  
Officers In 
Attendance: 
 

C.Morris, C.Davies, G.White, R.MacGregor, 
J.Griffiths, J.Woodman-Ralph and N.Jones 
 

  
 

 
1. CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
The Chair, Councillor J.Jones, welcomed all to the meeting. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2024, were 
approved as an accurate record. 
 

4. TO REQUEST SITE VISIT(S) FROM THE APPLICATIONS 
PRESENTED  
 
No requests for site visits were received. 
 

5. APPLICATION NO. P2024/0586 - LAND AT PONTNEDDFECHAN 
AND SOUTH OF PONTNEATHVAUGHAN ROAD  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

171224 

 
Officers made a presentation to the Planning Committee on this 
Application (Proposed development of Waterfall Country 
Pontneddfechan Visitor Infrastructure Scheme to include retail shop, 
welfare facilities, tourist accommodation, ancillary plant room, 
lighting, car parking facilities, demolition of outbuildings adjoining 
Sgwd Gwladys and existing toilet block, and creation of farm track 
access, play park/ courtyard, with associated infrastructure works, at 
land at Pontneddfechan and South of Pontneathvaughan Road) as 
detailed in the circulated report.  
 
The Local Ward Member had requested that the application be 
determined by the Planning Committee, and was unable to attend, so 
forwarded the Chair a form of wording to read out at the Planning 
Committee, to be taken into account at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: That in accordance with Officers’ 

recommendations, Application No. 
P2024/0586 – Land At Pontneddfechan and 
South of Pontneathvaughan Road be 
Approved, subject to the conditions detailed 
within the circulated report, and the amended 
conditions within the Amendment Sheet. 

 
6. APPLICATION NO. P2024/0685 - THE REFURBISHMENT OF THE 

PRINCESS ROYAL THEATRE AND CIVIC SQUARE, INCLUDING 
EXTENSION OF THE THEATRE.  
 
Officers made a presentation to the Planning Committee on this 
Application (The refurbishment of the Princess Royal Theatre and 
Civic Square, including extension of the Theatre, at Princess Royal 
Theatre Port Talbot Civic Centre, access to Port Talbot Civic Centre 
Port Talbot, Neath Port Talbot) as detailed in the circulated report.  
 
The Local Ward Member had requested that the application be 
determined by the Planning Committee, and was present to give his 
representations at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: That in accordance with Officers’ 

recommendations, Application No. 
P2024/0685 – The Refurbishment of the 
Princess Royal Theatre and Civic Square, 
including extension of the Theatre, be 
Approved, subject to the conditions detailed 
within the circulated report. 

Page 6



 

171224 

 
7. APPEALS RECEIVED - 18 NOVEMBER TO 9 DECEMBER 2024  

 
Members noted the list of Appeals Received from 18 November to 9 
December 2024. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

8. DELEGATED DECISIONS - 18 NOVEMBER TO 9 DECEMBER 
2024  
 
Members noted the list of Appeals Received from 18 November to 9 
December 2024. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 

9. URGENT ITEMS  
 
No urgent items were received. 

 
 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

SECTION A – MATTERS FOR DECISION 
 
Planning Applications Recommended For Approval 
 

APPLICATION NO: P2024/0626 DATE: 03/10/2024 

PROPOSAL: Change of use of ground floor of 60-61 Afan Road from retail 
unit (A1) to two x 1 bedroom holiday lets (C6). 

LOCATION: 60-61 Afan Road, Duffryn Rhondda, Neath Port Talbot, SA13 3ET 

APPLICANT: Mr Tim Bessex 

TYPE: Minor All Others 

WARD: Cymmer and Glyncorrwg 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
This application is reported to Planning Committee at the request of the Local 
Ward Member, Councillor Jeff Jones, for the following reasons: 
 

 Loss of last community facility (shop). 

 Loss of car parking in immediate area. 

 Noise disturbance from existing holiday lets. 
 
 
SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
The application site comprises a unit within a mixed-use terrace, which 
currently consists of holiday lets at ground and first floor, and a local shop at 
ground floor. The terrace benefits from limited off-road car parking and rear 
garden sections that are sited below the road level.  
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 
 
 
DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
Planning consent is sought for the change of use of the ground floor at No. 
60-61 Afan Road from retail unit (A1) to two, one-bedroom holiday lets (C6). 
 
External alterations to the existing shopfront are also proposed, with the 
addition of two additional front doors, and the replacing of the existing large 
shopfront windows with four smaller windows with a more residential 
aesthetic.  

 
 
 

Page 10



 

 

NEGOTIATIONS 
 
No negotiations have taken place. 
 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The application site has the following relevant planning history: - 
 
P2012/0443: Change of use from single dwelling to two self-contained flats 
and alterations to fenestration at basement level. Application approved on 1st 
August 2012. 
 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
The Head of Transport and Engineering (Highways): No objection. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
Neighbouring properties were consulted on 30th October 2024.  
 
In response, to date, 4 objections to the application have been received, 
including one sustained from the Local Ward Member. The comments have 
been summarised as follows: 
 

 Lack of sufficient car parking. 

 Detrimental impact on highway safety. 

 Over-intensification of holiday let use.  

 Noise disturbance. 

 Loss of sole retail unit in the immediate area. 
 
There have also been 4 statements of support from members of the public. 
The comments have been summarised as follows: 
 

 Removal of shop would ease traffic flow and result in a betterment in 
highway safety. 

 Tourism bringing investment to local businesses. 

 Expansion of employment opportunities within the area. 
 
REPORT 
 
National Planning Policy: 
 
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 is the national development 
framework, setting the direction for development in Wales to 2040. The 
development plan sets out a strategy for addressing key national priorities 
through the planning system, including sustaining and developing a vibrant 
economy, achieving decarbonisation and climate resilience, developing strong 
ecosystems and improving the health and wellbeing of our communities. 

Page 11

mailto:https://gov.wales/future-wales-national-plan-2040


 

 

 
The following policies are of particular relevance to the assessment of this 
application: 
 
Policy 2 – Shaping Urban Growth and Regeneration – Strategic Placemaking  
Policy 9 – Resilient Ecological Networks and Green Infrastructure  
 

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12, February 2024)  
The primary objective of PPW is to ensure that the planning system 
contributes towards the delivery of sustainable development and improves the 
social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, as required 
by the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 and other key legislation and resultant duties such as the 
Socio-economic Duty. A well-functioning planning system is fundamental for 
sustainable development and achieving sustainable places 
 
PPW promotes action at all levels of the planning process which is conducive 
to maximising its contribution to the well-being of Wales and its communities. 
It encourages a wider, sustainable and problem solving outlook which focuses 
on integrating and addressing multiple issues rather than on an approach 
which is fragmented, un-coordinated and deals with issues in isolation. 
It provides an opportunity to remove any actual or perceived problems in 
current approaches and stimulate and support innovative and creative ideas 
as well as high standards of evidence and assessment to underpin the 
preparation of development plans and strategies and individual proposals. 
Monitoring and learning from development outcomes so as to drive 
sustainable improvements in planning practice is also important. 
 
PPW12 is supported by a series of more detailed Technical Advice Notes 
(TANs), of which the following are of relevance: - 
 

 Technical advice note (TAN) 12: design (2016) 

 Technical advice note (TAN) 18: transport (2007) 
 
Local Planning Policies 
 
The Local Development Plan for the area comprises the Neath Port Talbot 
Local Development Plan which was adopted in January 2016, and within 
which the following policies are of relevance: 
 
Strategic Policies 
 

 Policy SP3   Sustainable communities 

 Policy SP13  Tourism 

 Policy SP15  Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
 
Topic based Policy 

 

 Policy EN6   Important Biodiversity and Geodiversity Sites 

 Policy TR2  Design and Access of New Development 

Page 12

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2024-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-12_1.pdf
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes
https://www.npt.gov.uk/7328
https://www.npt.gov.uk/7328


 

 

 Policy BE1  Design 

 Policy SC1  Settlement Limits 

 Policy SC2  Protection of Existing Community Facilities  

 Policy T02 Protection of Existing Tourism Facilities 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
 
The following SPG is of relevance to this application: - 
 

 Parking Standards (October 2016) 

 Design (July 2017) 

 Biodiversity and Geodiversity (May 2018) 
 
Issues 
 
Having regard to the above, the main issues to consider in this application 
relate to the principle of the change of use and resultant loss of the 
commercial retail unit, impact on the visual amenity of the area, the amenities 
of neighbouring residents and highway safety. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
The development site is located within settlement limits as defined by Policy 
SC1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (LDP). Development 
within settlement limits that is proportionate in scale and form to the role and 
function of the settlement is generally acceptable in principle, subject to the 
development complying with the requirements of the other development plan 
policies. In this case, the scale and form of the proposal is considered 
proportionate to the settlement. 
 
The proposal seeks to change the use of the ground floor of units 60 and 61 
Afan Road, of which its existing use is an A1 retail shop (Delicatessen, now 
vacant) , which is considered within Policy SC2 as a  community facility. 
Therefore, Policy SC2 of the LDP which refers to the Protection of Existing 
Community Facilities is relevant to this application.  
 
Policy SC2  relates to the Protection of Existing Community Facilities 

 
It states that;   
 
Any proposals which would result in the loss of an important existing 
community facility will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that: 
 

1. The facility is surplus to requirements; or 
2. The existing use is no longer viable. 
 
The explanation of this policy goes further to add;  
 
Community facilities are a vital part of the life of a community and can help 
create cohesive communities where people are able to meet and participate 

Page 13

https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/spg_parking_standards_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7237/spg_design_july17.pdf


 

 

in a range of activities, making a fundamental contribution to ensuring the 
sustainability of communities. The importance of meeting places is vital for 
health and well-being and helps create communities where residents feel 
included rather than isolated. 
 

For the purposes of this policy, any facility that serves a community purpose 
can be defined as a community facility, including community halls, libraries, 
local or village shops, public houses and places of worship. Where a facility 
performs (or has performed) an important or central function in the life of the 
local community, any change to a non-community use will be resisted unless it 
can be demonstrated that the facility is no longer viable or needed by the 

community and that there is no potential that the building can be used for an 
alternative or shared community use. 
 

The type of evidence required will vary depending on the type of facility under 
consideration, but may include details of why the building is no longer in 

use, what alternative provision there is locally, what other community options 
have been considered for the building and evidence to show that reasonable 

efforts have been made to market the facility for sale or lease for its existing 
use. 
 
The applicant has indicated and provided evidence that the shop has been 
closed for 18 months, which has been reinforced by the submitted Ferriers 
Sales and Letting Agents’ Marketing Report.  The report details that the shop 
has been advertised for let since October 2023, but vacant from April 2023.  
It has been listed at rent of £600 per calendar month. Very little interest was 
generated with only 1 person booking a viewing, who later cancelled after 
realising the distance from Port Talbot town centre. After discussion with the 
Council’s Business Rates and Estates Sections, the above level of marketing 
and rent is considered appropriate and sufficient in demonstrating that the 
existing shop use is no longer viable and therefore the loss of this community 
facility is justified, in accordance with criteria 1 of Policy SC2 of the LDP. 
Noting that the use proposed would still lie within a commercial use, providing 
tourism accommodation of which there are supporting policies, as set out 
within more detail matter in this report. It is noted that a shop of similar scale 
and nature in the form of Village Discount Store, is located 2.6 miles away 
from the application site. 
 
Despite satisfying Policy SC2, which would result in the loss of the community 
facility (shop), it is considered to be reasonable and necessary to retain the 
shopfront aesthetic within the frontage of the application site. This is to enable 
any future developments of a retail nature to occupy and operate within the 
units with ease and without having to physically alter the external appearance 
of the units. Should the application receive approval, this can be secured via 
suitably worded condition. 
 
The proposal is for the change of use to holiday lets for tourism purposes. 
Therefore, Strategic Policy SP13 (Tourism) of the Neath port Talbot LDP is 
also relevant in this case, outlining that the economic prosperity of Neath Port 

Page 14



 

 

Talbot should be promoted through encouraging continued growth in the 
tourism sector by: 
 

1. Encouraging high quality, sustainable tourism development. 
2. Providing a flexible approach to the development and conversions to 

tourism facilities. 
3. Resisting, where appropriate, proposals which would result in the loss of 

tourism facilities. 
4. Supporting tourism proposals through the allocation of land for tourism 

development. 
 
The proposal seek permission of a change of use of a commercial building to 
tourism accommodation, which satisfying point 1 of SP13. The proposal also 
incorporates the conversion of a shop, which has been proven to be surplus to 
requirement through the submitted marketing report, to which point 2 of SP13 
clearly outlines that a flexible approach to conversions to tourism facilities 
should be taken. 
 
Furthermore, should this application be approved, it is also considered 
reasonable and necessary to restrict the application sites’ Permitted 
Development Rights, given that Policy T02 (Protection of Existing Tourism 
Facilities) seeks to prevent such tourist facilities converting into permanent 
residential uses. Ordinarily, uses that fall within Use Class C6 short term 
holiday lets are permitted to change to a use falling within C3 or C5, however, 
a suitably worded condition will be applied to this application should it be 
approved. 
 
Impact on Visual Amenity 
 
Policy BE1 of the LDP requires that development compliments and enhances 
the character and appearance of the site; respects the context of the site and 
its place within the local landscape; utilises materials appropriate to its 
surroundings; and incorporates appropriate landscaping. 
 
Physical alterations to the units which are proposed, include the replacing of 
the shopfront with a more residential frontage aesthetic, consisting of windows 
and doors. Whilst these alterations are moderate and considered to have an 
appropriate impact on the character and appearance of the units and street 
scene, as aforementioned, it is considered that the existing shopfronts should 
be retained in order to allow for any future developments of a retail nature to 
occupy and operate within the units with ease and without having to physically 
alter the external appearance of the units, should circumstances change.  
The proposal, subject to this change is therefore considered to comply with 
Policy BE1 of the LDP. 
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
Policy BE1(4) of the LDP requires that development does not have a 
significant adverse effect on the amenity of local residents. The Authority has 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (adopted July 2017) on Design which 

Page 15



 

 

provides specific advice on how to consider residential amenity impacts in 
determining planning applications. 
 
Residential properties are located in the street, along Afan Road on the 
opposite side to the application site. Given the appropriate siting, scale and 
nature of the proposed change of use and physical alterations, the proposal is 
considered to have an acceptable impact on residential amenity. 
 
The whole building of the application consists of No. 60-61 and 62, of which a 
number of holiday lets are already present between the ground and first floors 
of the entire building, with no actual full C3 residential units within. In addition 
to this it is recommended to impose a condition preventing external alterations 
to the existing shop front.  As such the proposed development would not 
result in any adverse overlooking, overshadowing or overbearing impacts.  
 
Objections to the proposal refer to detrimental noise impacts from the existing 
holiday lets within the wider terrace. The objection claims that loud music can 
be heard from the terrace until late in the evening. Whilst the addition of two 
one-bedroom holiday units  does have the potential to intensify the use, the 
nearest residential building is located approximately 20m away from the 
application site which is considered to be sufficient in mitigating any 
detrimental noise levels. Additionally, the Local Planning Authority cannot be 
expected to control the behaviours / mannerisms of the occupants of the 
holiday lets and other legislation outside of planning deals with issues of 
statutory noise nuisance. It should also be noted that activity associated with 
the lawful A1 use would have resulted in activity at the site, with traffic 
movements and visitors also.  
 
Therefore, the proposal is not considered to have an impact on the residential 
amenity of occupiers of any of the other adjacent holiday let nor would it result 
in a material increase in the level of activity or noise over or above that of the 
existing retail use. 
 
 
 
The proposal is therefore considered to have an acceptable impact on 
residential amenity, corresponding with Policy BE1 of the LDP. 
 
Parking and Access Requirements and Impact on Highway Safety 
 
Policy TR2 of the LDP identifies that proposals will only be permitted where 
there are appropriate levels of parking and cycling facilities provided. The 
development has to be accessible by a range of travel means, including public 
transport and safe cycle and pedestrian routes. A car parking area does exist 
adjacent to No. 62 Afan Road, just to the immediate west of the application 
site, and which provides car parking provision for the other existing holiday 
lets.  However, this area has not been included within the red line boundary 
for this application and is therefore not considered as off-street car parking for 
the application site. An internal garage is attached to the eastern side of the 
application site, within the red line boundary, however its internal dimensions 

Page 16



 

 

are not considered sufficient to allow for car parking, and it has been outlined 
that this area shall be dedicated to storage. 
 
Whilst the applicant has not outlined any designated car parking spaces, 
on-street car parking does exist on this section of Afan Road. Additionally, the 
Head of Transport and Engineering (Highways) has raised no objection to the 
proposal on highway safety grounds, providing the following comments: 
 
I have no Highway objection to the proposed change of use as the parking 
requirement is a betterment over the previous usage class. However, I do 
have the below Highway Safety Conditions in relation to the design: 

1. No doors, windows or parts thereof at ground floor level to open out onto 
or over the public highway. 

2. Available parking within the curtilage of the site shall not be removed, 
although can be modified for ease of usage, and shall be retained for 
off-road parking by the guests for one of these Holiday Lets. Guests 
should be instructed to utilise this area to mitigate parking on the 
Highway which is also a major bus route through the valley. 

3. Any future alterations to the properties on-site parking shall be designed 
in accordance with NPTCBC’s Parking Standards SPG (October 2016) 
documentation. 

 
A shop of this nature attracts a number of customers, who at this location are 
likely to have driven, and park briefly over a short-term period, which can 
result in parking in potentially dangerous places. The proposed use, would 
likely attract vehicle users, however, given the scale and nature of the 
proposed holiday lets, each let is likely to generate only one car per unit.  As 
the associated vehicles are likely to be parked for longer period of time 
throughout the day, they are likely to find safer on-street locations with fewer 
vehicle movement than is typically associated within a retail unit.  
 
Therefore, with the removal of the shop and its’ associated customer vehicular 
usage, the proposal is considered to result in less vehicular movements, with 
less customer comings and goings, the proposal is considered to have an 
acceptable impact on highway safety, corresponding with Policy TR2 of the 
LDP. 
 

Page 17



 

 

 
 
Biodiversity 
 
As identified above, Policies EN6 and EN7 of the Local Development Plan will 
be of relevance insofar as there is a need to ensure any impacts on 
biodiversity/ natural features are appropriately assessed and, where 
applicable, mitigated.   
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) 12 sets out that; 
 
The quality of the built environment should be enhanced by integrating green 
infrastructure into development through appropriate site selection and use of 
creative design. With careful planning and design, informed by an appropriate 
level of assessment, green infrastructure can embed the benefits of 
biodiversity and ecosystem services into new development and places, help to 
overcome the potential for conflicting objectives, and contribute to health and 
well-being outcomes.  
 
A green infrastructure statement should be submitted with all planning 
applications. This will be proportionate to the scale and nature of the 
development proposed and will describe how green infrastructure has been 
incorporated into the proposal. In the case of minor development this will be a 
short description and should not be an onerous requirement for applicants. 

Page 18



 

 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 
  

 
  
  Reason:

  this decision.
1 The development shall begin no later than five years from the date of

Time Limit Conditions

Conditions:-

To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:

Recommendation:

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.
sustainable development principle in accordance with the requirements of the 
National  Plan  2040  and  the  Council’s  well-being  objectives  and  the 
It  is  further  considered that  the  decision  complies  with  Future  Wales - the 

Development Plan.
T02  (Protection of Existing  Tourism  Facilities)  of the  Neath  Port Talbot  Local 
(Settlement  Limits),  SC2  (Protection  of  Existing  Community  Facilities),  and 
BE1 (Design),  TR2  (Design  and  Access  of  New  Development),  SC1 
safety. Accordingly, the proposed development is in accordance with Policies 
neighbouring residents, visual amenity of the area or highway and pedestrian 
development  that  would  have  no  unacceptable  impact  on  the  amenities  of 
It  is  considered  that  the  proposal  represents  an  appropriate  form  of 

Development Plan (2011–2026) adopted January 2016.
Future  Wales - the  National  Plan  2040  and  the  Neath  Port  Talbot  Local 
material considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan comprises 
determination  must  be  in  accordance  with  the  Development  Plan  unless 
2004,  which  requires  that,  in  determining  a  planning  application  the 
accordance  with  Section  38  of  The  Planning  and  Compulsory  Purchase  Act 
The  decision  to  recommend  planning  permission  has  been  taken  in 

CONCLUSION

addressed within the above appraisal.
The  issues  raised  in  objection  to  the  proposed  development  have  been 

Other Matters

building. This will be secured via suitably worded condition.
In this case the development will provide a bird box on an elevation of the host 

(Paragraph 6.4.15 of PPW 12) has been applied.
and  must  be  used  for  demonstrating  how  the  step-wise  approach 
positive multi-functional outcomes which are appropriate to the site in question 
The green  infrastructure  statement  will  be  an  effective  way  of  demonstrating 

Page 19



 

 

 To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

 
List of Approved Plans 
 
 2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans and documents:  
  
 Block/Site Plan,  

Proposed Ground Floor Plan,  
Existing/Proposed Elevations. 

  
 Reason:  
 In the interests of clarity. 
 
Regulatory Conditions 
 
 3 Prior to the first beneficial occupation of the dwelling(s) hereby 

permitted, an artificial nesting site for birds shall be erected on the 
dwelling to one of the following specifications, and retained as such 
thereafter; 

 Nest Box Specifications for House Sparrow Terrace: 
 Wooden (or woodcrete) nest box with 3 sub-divisions to support 3 

nesting pairs. To be placed under the eaves of buildings.  
 Entrance holes: 32mm diameter 
 Dimensions: H310 x W370 x D185mm 
 or 
 Swift Nest Box Specification: 
 Wide box with small slit shaped entrance hole. Must be placed under or 

close to roofs, at least 5m from the ground. 
 Dimensions: H150 x W340 x D150mm 
  
 Reason: 
 In the interest of biodiversity, and to mitigate to loss of bird 

nesting/foraging habitats under the Habitats Regulations (amended 
2012) and to accord with Policy SP15 of the adopted Neath Port Talbot 
Local Development Plan. 

 
 4 Notwithstanding the details submitted no alterations shall be made to the 

scale of the shop front fenestration of the units hereby approved, 
including any alterations or addition of doors, windows or parts of 
openings.   

  
 Reason: 
 In the interest of visual amenity and to allow future potential use of the 

building for retail purposes and in accordance with Policy SC2 of the 
Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
 5 The units shall be used for short-term holiday lets (Use Class C6) and 

for no other purpose according to the schedule to the Town and Country 

Page 20



 

 

Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (or in any provision equivalent to 
that class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that order 
with or without modification) with no change of use to C3 Dwellinghouse 
without the benefit of planning permission.  

  
 Reason:  
 In order that other changes of use can be assessed in the interests of 

amenity and to accord with Policies SC1, T02 and TR2 of the Neath Port 
Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

SECTION A – MATTERS FOR DECISION 

 

Planning Applications Recommended For Approval  

APPLICATION NO: P2024/0234 DATE: 11/04/2024 

PROPOSAL: Outline application for the development of 3no. detached dwellings 

with associated works (All Matters Reserved). 

LOCATION: Land To The West Of Danygraig Lane, Between Glan Gwrelych And 

Ynys Y Nos Avenue, Glynneath, SA11 5LG. 

APPLICANT: Mrs Williams. 

TYPE:  Outline Application. 

WARD:  Glynneath Central and East. 

 

BACKGROUND 

This application is reported to Planning Committee as Ward Member Cllr Simon 

Knoyle has requested that the application be determined by Planning Committee for 

the following reasons: 

“Highways issues - adding to the existing issues that are faced on Ivorites Row, Glan 

Gwerlych and onto Merthyr Road, with the junction issues, traffic parking on the 

Pontwalby Bridge which adds to the impact in the area, I am a resident of Pontwalby 

and although there have only been a few reported accidents in this area, I can tell 

you that there have been many near misses and incidents and accidents which have 

gone unreported. I believe you stated that the Junction issues do not actually meet 

requirements as they are currently and adding to this would cause more issues. 

I don’t think that the Coal Tip issues have been closed out entirely and this worries 

me already without adding to the issue with more homes. 

In Pontwalby (effectively my neighbours) have made their feelings clear with many 

objections to the proposals and these cannot be overlooked. Local knowledge of this 

area in terms of access, parking and other such objections raised are very valid and I 

would request a site visit for members to see the specific issues for themselves and 

not via a desktop study. 

Land ownership issues are still a concern for me, the strip accessing the land does 

not appear to be in the ownership of the developers and I wonder how Planning can 

be granted if this is not within their control?” 

SITE AND CONTEXT 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



The application site is an irregular parcel of land located to the east of Glan 

Gwrelych and to the west of Dan Y Graig. The site measures approximately 0.28 

hectares with a partially sloping topography. The site is accessed off Glan Gwrelych 

with a number of TPOs located on site and the site is located within settlement limits.  

 

Residential properties are located to the north, east and west of the site with open 

countryside and a viaduct located to the south.  

DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT 

The application seeks outline consent for the construction of 3no dwellings with 

associated works. The submitted drawing shows that the three proposed dwellings 

would be located within the centre of the site with access to the west.  

The site layout plan submitted is indicative at this stage with the access road running 

along the south of the site, amenity space to the north and the provision of three 

parking spaces per dwelling.  

The proposed scale parameters for the proposed dwelling are as follows:  

o Length – 10m -12m  

o Width – 12m – 14m  

o Height – 7m – 9m  

NEGOTIATIONS 

No negotiations undertaken.  

PLANNING HISTORY 

Page 24



The application site has the following relevant planning history: - 

P2023/0303 - Proposal: Outline planning application for the construction of 3no. 

detached dwellings (all matters reserved). Decision: Withdrawn. Decision Date: 

15-JUN-23 

P2006/0307 - Proposal: Outline Planning Application - Residential Development For 

3 No. Detached Dwellings with Garages. Decision: Approved. Decision Date: 

27-APR-06 

P2009/0417 - Proposal: Variation of Condition 3 Of Previous Planning Permission 

P2006/0307 Granted On 27th April 2006 To Extend The Period Of Time For The 

Submission Of Reserved Matters. Decision: Approved. Decision Date: 24-SEP-10 

 

 

 

CONSULTATIONS 

Drainage Section were consulted on the 19th April – SAB approval required.  

Welsh Water Dwr Cymru were consulted on the 19th April – Site crossed by 500mm 

water main with request for conditions.  

Highway Section were consulted on the 19th April – concerns identified regarding 

track width, shared driveway length, visibility from Glan Gwerlych junction, culvert 

location, driveway and previous refusal. 

Arborist was consulted on the 19th April – no concerns raised with required 

protective fencing. 

Biodiversity were consulted on the 19th April - No objection.   

Natural Resources Wales were consulted on the 19th April – Request for condition 

relating to CEMP.  

CADW were consulted on the 19th April – no representation received.  

Community Council was consulted on the 19th April – no representation received.  

Contaminated Land was consulted on the 19th April – no objection subject to 

condition.  

The Coal Authority were consulted on the 19th April – no comments.  

Ward members were notified.  

 

REPRESENTATIONS 

The neighbouring properties were consulted on 19th April 2024 and a site notice was 

also displayed on 29th April 2024.  
Page 25



In response, to date 22no. representations have been received from 15 properties, 

with the issues raised are summarised as follows: - 

 Increased traffic in congested area and access already restricted due to 

increased on-street parking.  

 Adverse effect on highway and pedestrian safety.  

 Road along Glan Gwrelych is pitted and damaged with sink hole in the road in 

2021 causing transport and access issues for residents.  

 No positive effect on existing residents only seller and developer. 

 Access way is narrow and lacking footways.  

 Detrimental impact on the area and traffic on access road and current road 

surface in very poor state of disrepair.  

 Additional dwelling will put additional pressure on existing traffic and number 

of cars and deliveries will increase.  

 Road currently serves existing working farms and further dwellings will add 

pressure to the existing residents.  

 FCA has been prepared however the area in front of the gates floods in bad 

weather as per land registry map.  

 Several documents within the planning application that are incorrect which is 

misleading and untrue, such as within the planning statement.  

 Planning statement doesn’t include TPO history 

 Photos submitted are misleading.  

 Access onto the land is not owned by the applicant.  

 Site is not greenfield or brownfield it is a registered coal tip (category C/D). 

Don’t believe coal tip safety is being addressed in this application.  

 DCWW correspondence ratifies that DCWW does not support this application 

as a lack of suitability to any possible water main in its current format.  

 Land has not been accessed regularly by vehicles, an 8 ton lorry was pared in 

the field gateway blocking access.  

 Right of access formalised with Land Registry but no such agreement on 

Land Registry.  

 Add published in Western Mail however newspaper add went out after 

document was written so no way they can know if any responses have been 

received as implied in this application.  

 Junction currently used to turn.  

Page 26



 Planning statement states prescriptive easement to the applicant however this 

is false and only recently applied for.  

 Overlooking and loss of privacy and land raised above property.  

 Flooding and the culvert from the mountain.  

 Contaminated Land due to dumped waste.  

 New entrance may uproot tree.  

 No utilities/ services on site so could be overuse of present drainage system.  

 No notice put up for residents.  

 House building needed for first time homes, the three proposed are not in 

short supply.  

 Building in the field would be difficult and expensive and take quite some time 

to be suitable to build on.  

 HGVs increase and accessing the site. 

 Site visit is essential.  

 Difficult to see how developer/ builder could mitigate against the protests put 

forward as no alternative access to site.  

 Owner of Dan Y Graig has right of access across the field.  

 P2014/0836 application previously refused on highway grounds.  

No change in access since 2014 application and increased number of cars has only 

increased pressure and hazard hasn’t changed.  

Refusal reason; This Development will have an adverse effect on highway and 

pedestrian safety as the visibility out on to Merthyr Road from Glan Gwrelych is 

inadequate and dangerous and the lane itself is narrow and lacking in footways with 

insufficient room for two vehicles to pass.  

This is in addition to the unsuitability of the access lane to the plot where the visibility 

off Bryn Ivor with Glan Gwrelych at Ivorites Row is also inadequate, even when 

viewed across adjacent forecourts and therefore it is considered that any additional 

traffic generation at this junction would be to the detriment to the safety and free flow 

of traffic along Glan Gwrelych.  The proposed development does not comply with 

Polices GC1 and T1 of the Neath Port Talbot Unitary Development Plan. 

REPORT 

The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council 

to take reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable 

development (or wellbeing) objectives. This report has been prepared in 

consideration of the Council’s duty and the “sustainable development principle”, as 

set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation set out below, the Council 

Page 27



has sought to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising 

the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. 

 

National Planning Policy: 

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 is the national development framework, 

setting the direction for development in Wales to 2040. The development plan sets 

out a strategy for addressing key national priorities through the planning system, 

including sustaining and developing a vibrant economy, achieving decarbonisation 

and climate resilience, developing strong ecosystems and improving the health and 

wellbeing of our communities. 

The following policies are of particular relevance to the assessment of this 

application: 

Policy 2 – Shaping Urban Growth and Regeneration – Strategic Placemaking  

Policy 6 – Town Centre First 

Policy 7 – Delivering Affordable Homes  

Policy 8 – Flooding  

Policy 9 – Resilient Ecological Networks and Green Infrastructure  

Policy 12 – Regional Connectivity  

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12, January 2024) outlines the Welsh 

Government's commitment to the importance of 'places' and 'place-making', the 

importance of using previously developed land wherever possible in preference to 

greenfield sites, and the recognition of the health and wellbeing related benefits by 

creating a sense of place and improving social cohesion. PPW 12 confirms that the 

environmental components of places are intrinsically linked to the quality of the built 

and natural environment and contribute to the health and wellbeing of the people 

who live, work and play there. It emphasises the importance of creating sustainable 

communities and reducing reliance on the private car as part of a package of 

measures to reduce the country's carbon footprint and help tackle the climate 

emergency. 

3.9 The special characteristics of an area should be central to the design of a 

development. The layout, form, scale and visual appearance of a proposed 

development and its relationship to its surroundings are important planning 

considerations. A clear rationale behind the design decisions made, based on site 

and context analysis, a strong vision, performance requirements and design 

principles, should be sought throughout the development process and expressed, 

when appropriate, in a design and access statement’. 

3.10 In areas recognised for their particular landscape, townscape, cultural or 

historic character and value it can be appropriate to seek to promote or reinforce 

local distinctiveness. In those areas, the impact of development on the existing 

character, the scale and siting of new development, and the use of appropriate 

Page 28

mailto:https://gov.wales/future-wales-national-plan-2040
mailto:https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-11_0.pdf


building materials (including where possible sustainably produced materials from 

local sources), will be particularly important’. 

3.14 Site and context analysis should be used to determine the appropriateness of a 

development proposal in responding to its surroundings. This process will ensure 

that a development is well integrated into the fabric of the existing built environment. 

The analysis process will highlight constraints and opportunities presented by 

existing settlement structure and uses, landscape, biodiversity, water environment, 

movement, infrastructure, materials and resources, soundscape and built form which 

will need to be considered when formulating proposals’. 

‘6.4.2 The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 introduced an enhanced biodiversity and 

resilience of ecosystems duty (Section 6 Duty). This duty applies to public authorities 

in the exercise of their functions in relation to Wales and will help maximise 

contributions to achieving the well-being goals. The Nature Recovery Action Plan 

supports this legislative requirement to reverse the decline in biodiversity, address 

the underlying causes of biodiversity loss by putting nature at the heart of 

decision-making and increasing the resilience of ecosystems by taking specific 

action focused around the 6 objectives for habitats and species’. 

PPW12 is supported by a series of more detailed Technical Advice Notes (TANs), of 

which the following are of relevance: - 

 TAN 10 – Tree Preservation Orders  

 TAN 11 – Noise  

 TAN 12 – Design  

 TAN 15 – Development and Flood Risk  

 TAN 18 - Transport 

Local Planning Policies 

The Local Development Plan for the area comprises the Neath Port Talbot Local 

Development Plan which was adopted in January 2016, and within which the 

following policies are of relevance: 

Strategic Policies 

 Policy SP3   Sustainable Communities 

 Policy SP4  Infrastructure 

 Policy SP7  Housing Requirement 

 Policy SP10  Open Space 

 Policy SP15  Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

 Policy SP20  Transport Network 

 Policy SP21  Built Environment and Historic Heritage 

Page 29

https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes
https://www.npt.gov.uk/7328
https://www.npt.gov.uk/7328


Topic Based Policy 

 Policy SC1  Settlement limits 

 Policy H1  Housing 

 Policy AH1  Affordable Housing 

 Policy  OS1  Open Space provision 

 Policy EN06  Important biodiversity and geodiversity sites. 

 Policy EN07  Important Natural Features 

 Policy TR2  Design and Access of New development 

 Policy BE1   Design 

 Policy I1  Infrastructure Requirements 

Supplementary Planning Guidance: 

The following SPG is of relevance to this application: - 

 Planning Obligations (October 2016) 

 Parking Standards (October 2016) 

 Affordable Housing (October 2016) 

 Pollution (October 2016) 

 Open Space & Greenspace (July 2017) 

 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy (July 2017) 

 Design (July 2017) 

 Development and the Welsh Language (July 2017) 

 Landscape & Seascape (May 2018) 

 Biodiversity and Geodiversity (May 2018) 

 The Historic Environment (April 2019) (incl. Schedule of Buildings of Local 

Importance and SPG: Schedule of Designated Canal Structures) 

Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) and Appropriate Assessment (AA) 

Screening. 

The application site does not exceed the Schedule 2 threshold for development of 

this type as outlined within the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations. As 

such the application has not been screened in accordance with the requirements of 

Schedule 3 of the Regulations.  

Page 30

https://www.npt.gov.uk/pdf/spg_planning_obligations_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/spg_parking_standards_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/pdf/spg_affordable_housing_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/spg_pollution_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7239/spg_open_space_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7241/spg_renewable_energy_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7237/spg_design_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7243/spg_welsh_language_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9004/spg_landscape_seascape_may18.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9003/spg_biodiversity_geodiversity_may18.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/11629/spg_historic_environment_april19.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/11630/spg_bli_schedule_april19.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/11630/spg_bli_schedule_april19.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/11633/spg_canal_schedule_april19.pdf


The proposed development is not located within a zone of influence for any Special 

Area of Conservation (SAC), Candidate Special Area of Conservation (CSAC) or 

Ramsar sites and as such it is considered that an Appropriate Assessment as set 

down within the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 is not 

required.  

Issues 

Having regard to the above, the main issues to consider in this application relate to 

the principle of development, together with the impact on the visual amenity of the 

area, the amenities of neighbouring residents, highway safety, biodiversity, flooding 

and contaminated land. 

Principle of Development 

As identified above, an outline application for three dwellings was approved in 2006 

and the application was extended in 2009 through the submission of a section 73 

application. However, the application lapsed in 2012. It is noted that planning policy 

has moved on since the determination of the above applications, with the adoption of 

the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (LDP) and the latest revision of 

Planning Policy Wales 12. As such while the previous application on site is a 

material consideration, the proposal would still have to accord with the Authority’s 

LDP and National Policy.  

Policy SC1 (Settlement Limits) states that “Development within settlement limits that 

is proportionate in scale and form to the role and function of the settlement as set out 

in the settlement hierarchy will be acceptable in principle.” The LDP Settlement 

Hierarchy underpins the Development Strategy and is fundamental in addressing the 

issues facing the County Borough. The Council's overarching aim is to deliver 

strengthened communities that will make Neath Port Talbot a more vibrant, 

community focussed and sustainable place with better opportunities for all. 

As the application site is located within the settlement limits defined by Policy SC1 of 

the adopted Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (LDP), the principle of 

residential development at this location is generally acceptable, subject to 

compliance with policies BE1 and TR2 of the Local Development Plan and the 

Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance on ‘Design’. 

In regard to density, it is noted that the three dwellings are proposed on a site area of 

0.28 hectares. This equates to a density of approximately 10.7 dwellings per hectare. 

The proposed density would be below the recommended density set out within 

criteria 8 of Policy BE1 which seeks to achieve 30 dwellings per hectare within the 

Valley Strategy Area.  

Paragraph 5.5.14 supporting Policy BE1 outlines that ‘in order to make the best use 

of available land developments should be designed to maximise the accommodation 

provided … and development below the specified residential density levels will not 

be permitted unless it can be demonstrated that there are significant constraints 

associated with a site that prevent development at the specified levels or where 

development at the density required would have an adverse impact on the character 

or appearance of the locality or result in the loss of an important site feature’.  

Page 31



In this instance the context of the site is relevant in considering the acceptability of 

the density on site. The application site would be accessed off Glan Gwrelych, a 

fairly narrow road located off Merthyr Road. As noted within the applicant’s Planning 

Statement, the immediate locality is semi-rural and is characterised by low density, 

predominantly detached and semi-detached houses situated within fairly large plots. 

As such while an additional property could possibility be provided on site with the 

reduction of proposed floor area of the dwellings, the proposed density is not 

considered to be out of keeping with the character within the locality. Furthermore, 

as discussed later in the report, Plot 1 would be restricted to minimum parameters to 

ensure no unacceptable impact upon the neighbouring property and as such the 

provision of a higher density on site would likely result in an increased impact upon 

the neighbouring properties.  

 

 

In addition, the application site has numerous trees protected by Tree Preservation 

Orders (TPOs) on site predominately located around the boundary of the site. The 

location of the TPOs provides constraints on the development of the site, limiting the 

construction area to exclude the protection areas around these trees. The tree 

protection plan submitted conveys the proposed position of protective fencing which 

extends around the proposed dwelling locations and access track within the site. The 

location of the TPOs is considered to constrain the site from additional development 

as the addition of further dwellings could result in pressure to remove more trees 

particularly within G7 to the northwest of the site.  

The proposed dwellings would be expected to provide 1 parking space per bedroom 

up to a maximum of 3 spaces for each property and as such this would reduce the 

Page 32



ability to provide further dwellings. It is also noted that the properties would be 

accessed via a private driveway from Glan Gwrelych and as such additional highway 

infrastructure may be required which will be assessed later in the report.  

In light of the above, while the provision of three dwellings on site would be below 

the expected 30 dwellings per hectare as set out within policy BE1 of the LDP the 

constraints on site are considered to impede further development to the specified 

levels. As such the principle of the proposal is considered to be acceptable.  

Impact on Visual Amenity 

Policy BE1 of the Local Development Plan embodies the general good design 

principles of PPW 12 and states that “all development proposals will be expected to 

demonstrate high quality design which fully takes into account the natural, historic 

and built environmental context and contributes to the creation of attractive, 

sustainable places. 

The Council’s approved Supplementary Planning Guidance: ‘Design’ also 

emphasises the need for new development to respect and adhere to the character 

and traditional patterns of development within an area when developing small infill 

sites. It is important to consider the pattern of development since the proposed 

dwellings would be located within an existing street-scene, primarily consisting of 

two-storey semi-detached dwellings. 

This is an outline application with all matters of appearance, landscaping, layout and 

scale reserved for subsequent approval. As such, there are no specific design details 

available apart from indicative scale parameters and indicative site layout plan. 

Irrespective of this, an initial assessment of the potential visual impact of the 

development can still be made.  

The dwellings located off Glan Gwrelych do not have a defined building pattern with 

the properties vary in scale, form and orientation. The proposed dwellings would be 

sited off Glan Gwrelych by approximately 25m and would be partially screened by 

the existing vegetation and existing neighbouring properties.  

The submitted topography plan and indicative site layout plan conveys that the 

proposed dwellings would follow the existing topography of the site, with the 

proposed finish floor levels gradually declining from 75.50 to 72.50, while the 

proposed finish floor levels are indicative, they are considered to be in-keeping and 

acceptable.   

The illustrative layout plan together with the identified scale parameters indicated 

that the scale of the proposed development could be incorporated within the 

application site and would not be dissimilar to the scale of development within the 

vicinity, with the provision of parking and amenity space. However, it is noted that 

plot 1 would be the smallest plot, located in closest proximity to the neighbouring 

property at no.8 and the trees located close to the boundary. As such, it is 

considered reasonable that conditions are attached to the Decision Notice to ensure 

that plot 1 is limited to the minimum parameters and that Permitted Development 

Rights for extension and outbuildings to property are removed to ensure sufficient 

Page 33



garden space and in the interest of protecting the trees located to the north of the 

plot.  

Should outline planning permission be granted, the details associated with the siting, 

design, finishes and landscaping will be required at the reserved matters stage. The 

development would be required to be of a design, siting and finish that would be 

in-keeping with the locality, with the provision of sufficient parking and amenity space 

per dwelling. 

Subject to the above it is considered that the site is capable of accommodating the 

proposed development with the associated amenity and parking facilities which 

would not unacceptably detriment the character and appearance of the surrounding 

area and is considered to be acceptable, in accordance with Policy BE1.  

Impact on Residential Amenity 

As noted above, the application is for outline consent and as such there are no 

specific details in terms of siting, layout or window locations. While the submitted 

block plan shows the dwellings set back from the road and within the centre of the 

site and set off the boundaries, the siting of the properties would be determined 

through the submission of a reserved matters application.  

The application site is a parcel of land located within settlement limits with residential 

properties to the northeast and west of the site. The neighbouring properties in 

closest proximity to the application site is no7 and no8 Glan Gwrelych, located to the 

northwest of the site adjoining the northwest boundary of the site.  

The proposed dwelling in closest proximity to the neighbouring property at no.8 is 

plot 1, located approximately 2.2m off the western boundary and 21m from the 

dwelling.   

The Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): Design: Householder 

Guidance stipulates that where properties directly overlook habitable room windows, 

a distance of 21m should be provided. This distance would ensure that the proposed 

development would retain adequate separation and not result in an unacceptable 

overbearing or overlooking impact upon the neighbouring properties. The siting and 

orientation of any proposed windows would be addressed under a future reserved 

matters application, in accordance with distances outlined within the Council’s 

Design SPG.  

It is noted that concerns have been raised by the neighbouring property regarding 

overlooking and the increased ground levels at the application site. From the 

information provided the proposed dwellings appear to follow the topography of the 

site, however, would be slightly higher than the existing ground levels. Due to the 

location of plot 1, the design of the dwelling would have to be carefully considered at 

the detailed design stage, to ensure no unacceptable overlooking towards no.8.  

Nevertheless, the proposed siting and parameters are not considered to be 

overbearing in principle, due to the relationship with the neighbour and the irregular 

shaped plot. The detailed design of the proposed properties, together with their siting 

and the impact upon the neighbouring properties would be further considered at the 

reserved matters stage when the detailed design of the property is established.  

Page 34



With regard to the neighbouring property at no.7, the application site is adjoined 

along the northwestern boundary. From the indicative layout provided the proposed 

dwellings would be set off the boundary by a minimum of 9.1m, with plot 1 located in 

closest proximity to no.7. Plot 1 would also be located approximately 27m from the 

dwelling of no.7 due to the large garden area of the neighbour. These distances are 

considered to be acceptable to ensure that there would be no overlooking, 

overshadowing or overbearing to this existing property. 

With regard to the neighbouring property at Dan Y Graig, it would be located to the 

east of the application site, at a distance of approximately 29m from the application 

site. While views of the proposed dwellings would be visible from Dan Y Graig, due 

to the separation distance between the neighbour and the application site, the 

principle of development is not considered to unacceptably impact upon the 

residential amenity of the Dan Y Graig.  

While the siting, form and design of the proposed dwellings is not currently known, 

the proposed indicative site layout plan demonstrates that, in principle, there is 

sufficient room on site to ensure that the proposed development could be located 

within the site and would not result in an overbearing or overshadowing or loss of 

privacy to the neighbouring properties.  The design, form, siting and window 

locations would be further assessed at the reserved matters stage.  

Parking and Access Requirements and Impact on Highway Safety 

Policy TR2 (Design and Access of New Development) states that ‘Development 

proposals will only be permitted where all of the following criteria, where relevant, are 

satisfied:  

1. The development does not compromise the safe, effective and efficient use of the 

highway network and does not have an adverse impact on highway safety or create 

unacceptable levels of traffic generation;  

2. Appropriate levels of parking and cycling facilities are provided and the access 

arrangements for the site allow for the safe manoeuvring of any service vehicles 

associated with the planned use;  

3. The development is accessible by a range of travel means, including public 

transport and safe cycle and pedestrian routes;  

4. Transport Assessments and Travel Plans are provided for developments that are 

likely to create significant traffic generation. 

The application form confirms that all matters, including access is reserved, and 

therefore the specific details of the access arrangements on site would be assessed 

as part of the reserved matters application. Notwithstanding this, the indicative block 

plan indicates the point of access to the site, and illustrates the provision of three 

off-road parking spaces to the front of each of the dwellings.  The illustrative plan 

shows that access would be off Glan Gwrelych which is an unclassified highway.  

The Authority’s Parking Standards SPG states that for residential properties 1 

parking space per bedroom should be provided to a maximum of 3 spaces. The 

supporting notes within the SPG also identifies that curtilage parking must be 
Page 35



provided where possible. The description of development conveys that 3no dwellings 

are proposed and therefore it would be expected that a maximum of 3 spaces per 

dwelling would be provided on site, as shown on the submitted block plan.  

The Head of Engineering and Transport has been consulted as part of the 

application and provided the following comments –  

1. The existing access track needs to be widened to a minimum of 4.5m for the 

full extent. It is unclear on the submitted plan whether this is proposed. The 

turning facility on the submitted drawing is substandard and needs to be 

designed in accordance with standard detail within our design guide. 

2. The proposed shared drive is overlong. Private shared drives should not 

exceed 25m in length. As refuse can only be collected along the adopted 

highway, overlong shared drives exceed the maximum bin carrying distance 

for residents. A bin storage/collection location will need to be annotated on 

any further submissions. This should be along the adopted highway.  

3. The access track to the development has minimal visibility at the junction with 

Glan Gwrelych. Whilst this is an existing access, the development will 

significantly increase vehicular trips at the access, exacerbating the risk of 

conflict. There is scope to improve the visibility and therefore the applicant 

should submit a drawing demonstrating the maximum vehicular visibility at the 

access point on to the main leg of Glan Gwreych.  

4. Our records indicate that there is a 1000mm culvert running under the access 

track to the development. Full details of any upgrade works to the access road 

in proximity to this structure would need to be submitted for approval. 

5. The proposed driveways are substandard. A single driveway should be a 

minimum of 3.6m wide. A double width driveway (e.g. two vehicles parking 

side by side) should have a minimum width of 6.2m. Tandem parking spaces 

should have a minimum length of 10.8m. 

As noted above the application is for outline planning consent with all matters 

reserved, including access. As such it is considered that point 1 of the highway 

response can be achieved on site and can be secured by a suitably worded 

condition.  

The proposed dwellings would be sited off the adopted highway and along a private 

driveway. Due to the length of the illustrated driveway, it would exceed a 25m carry 

distance for the refuse collection. As such it is considered reasonable for a condition 

to be attached to the decision notice for details to be submitted to illustrate the 

provision of a refuse vehicle turning area within the site to adoptable standards. The 

turning area would reduce the carry distances for the residents to an acceptable 

level and provide sufficient room for the refuse vehicle to turn on site, so it can enter 

and leave the site in a forward gear.  

The comments received within point 3 of the Highways response refers to visibility 

exiting the application site. It is considered that the boundary of the site and the 

adopted highway is within the applicant’s ownership and as such a condition will be 

Page 36



attached to the decision notice for a plan to be submitted detailing the maximum 

visibility that can be achieved.  

As noted above, a condition will be attached to the Decision Notice to ensure the 

access into the site is built up to adoptable standards to provide a turning area. Due 

to these works a condition will also be attached to the Decision Notice for details of 

these works to be submitted to ensure no adverse impact on the existing culvert.  

A condition will also be attached to the Decision Notice to ensure appropriate 

driveway widths are provided within the Reserved Matters application.   

It is noted that a previous planning application within the wider locality was refused in 

2014 due to the visibility at the junction of Glan Gwerlych and Merthyr Road. This 

has also been raised in a number of neighbour responses as part of this application.  

Planning application P2014/0836, sought outline planning permission for the 

construction of a dwelling on land opposite 1 and 2 Bryn Ivor Lane and between 6 

and 7 Ivorites Row was refused for the following reason:  

“This Development will have an adverse effect on highway and pedestrian safety as 

the visibility out on to Merthyr Road from Glan Gwrelych is inadequate and 

dangerous and the lane itself is narrow and lacking in footways with insufficient room 

for two vehicles to pass. This is in addition to the unsuitability of the access lane to 

the plot where the visibility off Bryn Ivor with Glan Gwrelych at Ivorites Row is also 

inadequate, even when viewed across adjacent forecourts and therefore it is 

considered that any additional traffic generation at this junction would be to the 

detriment to the safety and free flow of traffic along Glan Gwrelych.  The proposed 

development does not comply with Polices GC1 and T1 of the Neath Port Talbot 

Unitary Development Plan”. 

Part of the reason for refusal relates to the unsuitability of the access land of Bryn 

Ivor with Glan Gwrelych. This reason would not be relevant in the current planning 

application as the application site is not located off Bryn Ivor.  

However, the initial reason for refusal which states ‘This Development will have an 

adverse effect on highway and pedestrian safety as the visibility out on to Merthyr 

Road from Glan Gwrelych is inadequate and dangerous and the lane itself is narrow 

and lacking in footways with insufficient room for two vehicles to pass’ is of material 

consideration.  

Firstly, the junction between Merthyr Road and Glan Gwrelych is existing and serves 

approximately 40 dwellings with no ability to be widened. It is also noted that since 

the determination of the 2014 application the speed limit along Merthyr Road has 

been reduced from 30mph to 20mph resulting in a reduction in the required visibility 

splay at the junction reducing down from 43m to a distance of 25m. The Highways 

Officer has taken measurements at the junction and has confirmed that a visibility 

distance of 20m can be achieved at the junction of Merthyr Road and Glan 

Gwrelych. Although it is noted that the distance is slightly below the expected 

visibility, consideration must be given to the fact that the junction is existing and 

currently serves approximately 40 dwellings.  

Page 37



The map below identifies the access off Merthyr Road with Glan Gwrelych and the 

number of properties served off that existing junction and access road, the addition 

of up to three additional properties is not considered to significantly increase traffic to 

a degree that would warrant a refusal in this case. Noting that each property will 

need to provide its own off street parking, served of the development remodelled 

access.  

 

 

 

 

A review of the data from Crash Maps UK, shows that there have been only to 

recorded accidents along the Glan Gwrelych and the Merthyr Road junction over a 

period of 24 years. As such it is not considered that a reason for refusal could be 

justified and defended on appeal on the substandard condition of the existing 

junction.   

It is noted that concerns have been raised relating to increase in traffic, parking, 

highways and pedestrian safety, road surface and HGV access along Glan 

Gwrelych.  

Page 38



The existing condition of the adopted highway is not a material planning 

consideration as this is a matter for the Highway Authority.  

Regarding the concerns of parking and increase in traffic, the proposed development 

will be expected to achieve 1 parking space per bedroom up to a maximum of 3no 

spaces as part of the Reserved Matters application. The spaces would be provided 

within the application site and off Glan Gwrelych.  

Concerns relating to congestion have also been raised by neighbouring properties, 

however the proposed development would result in the addition of 3no dwellings off 

Glan Gwrelych and as such it is not considered to result in a material increase in the 

volume of traffic to such a degree that would warrant a reason for refusal on this 

ground.  

Concerns have also been raised by neighbouring properties regarding the increase 

in HGVs accessing the site however a condition will be attached to the decision 

notice for the inclusion of a Construction Method Statement. In addition, it is noted 

that the presence of HVGs in association with the construction works would be of a 

temporary nature.  

 

 

 

 

Biodiversity / Ecology 

As identified above, Policies EN6 and EN7 of the Local Development Plan will be of 

relevance insofar as there is a need to ensure any impacts on biodiversity/ natural 

features are appropriately assessed and, where applicable, mitigated.   

Planning Policy Wales (PPW) 12 sets out that “planning authorities must seek to 

maintain and enhance biodiversity in the exercise of their functions. This means that 

development should not cause any significant loss of habitats or populations of 

species, locally or nationally and must provide a net benefit for biodiversity”. This 

policy and subsequent policies in Chapter 6 of PPW 12 respond to the Section 6 

Duty of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

A Green Infrastructure Statement has been provided as part of the application which 

conveys how the step-wise approach has been adopted by the proposal. The 

application proposes lawned areas seeded with EL1 Flowering Lawn Mixtures with a 

selection of wildflowers. A hibernaculum for reptiles will also be included within the 

final design together with a sparrow terrace or similar integrated into each of the 

proposed dwellings and a bat block integrated into the eastern elevations of the 

properties.  

Following a response from the Authority’s Ecologist the proposal is considered to be 

acceptable and a condition to secure the provision will be attached to the Decision 

Notice.  

Page 39



Trees  

It is noted that the application site is covered with Tree Preservation Orders that 

extend to the south of the site. A tree survey has been submitted to support the 

planning application and identifies that 2no. trees would be removed in order to 

facilitate the development.  

The Willow trees to be removed are category B trees located within the centre of the 

application site. In line with PPW12 the removal of the Willow trees would require the 

replanting of 6no. trees of a standard size. The Green Infrastructure Statement 

illustrates that the 6no. replacement trees would be located to the east of the 

application site, within the applicant’s ownership and a condition will be attached to 

the Decision Notice to ensure replacement tree planting details are provided together 

with planting methods.  

Tree Protection Plan  

 

While it is noted that the Willow trees are part of a large TPO on the site, it is noted 

that a significant number of trees would remain round the site boundary. The site is 

also not widely visibility from public vantage and the loss of the tree is not considered 

to have a significant adverse impact upon the visual amenity of the area.  

A response received from the Authority’s Tree officer states that the re-coppice of 

the Ash tree within G7 will increase biodiversity due to the beneficial effects of 

varying light levels reaching the woodland floor and the range of different ages trees/ 

regrowth.  

Page 40



Due to the requirements of widening the existing access for the development an 

updated tree survey will be conditioned for the Reserved Matters application to 

ensure any additional loss of trees are considered and compensated for.   

As such, subject to a condition requiring planting details for the 6no replacement 

trees the impact upon trees is considered to be acceptable.  

Flood risk / Drainage 

As noted within point 4 of the Highway response, included above, a culvert is located 

below the existing access point. A condition will be attached to the decision notice to 

ensure that details of the culvert are submitted via condition to facilitate the access 

upgrade works.  

The application is located outside of a flood zone due to the off-set of the application 

boundary from the river. NRW have been consulted on the application and have 

raised no concerns in regard to flooding.   

A response has been received from DCWW which identifies that the application site 

is crossed by a 500mm watermain. The consultation response confirms that an 

easement of 15m is required by the development or the watermain could be diverted 

under Section 185 of the Water Industry Act 1991. The DCWW response has 

requested conditions relating to the watermain which will be attached to the Decision 

Notice.  

The DCWW response confirms that there is capacity within the public sewerage 

network for the proposed development. The development would also be subject to 

SAB consent and an informative will be included within the decision notice.  

Contaminated Land 

The application site is located outside of a contaminated land area and within a low 

risk coal area. However, the Coal Authority have been consulted and provided a 

response which stated no comment. The Authority’s Contaminated Land officer was 

also consulted and raised no objection with request for unexpected contamination.  

It is noted that following responses from neighbouring properties during the 

consultation period, it appears that the site is identified as a Coal Tip. Following the 

responses from the Contaminated Land officer and Coal Authority the proposal is 

acceptable in terms of coal and contaminated land risk. Following the responses 

received, the Authority’s Engineering Section have also been consulted and have 

provided a response which stated that there is a disuse coal tip located to the south 

of the proposed development site, which is located at a higher ground level. 

However, there is a disused railway embankment between the application site and 

the tip and in the unlikely event of a slippage of material from the tip, the 

embankment would provide adequate containment of the material, ensuring that 

there is no potential adverse effect on the proposed properties. As such the 

proposed coal tip is not considered to result in a risk that would warrant a refusal of 

the application. However, an informative will be attached to the Decision Notice to 

make the applicant aware of the site location near a Coal Tip.  

Section 106 Planning Obligations  
Page 41



Local Development Plan Policy SP 4 (Infrastructure) states that “Developments will 

be expected to make efficient use of existing infrastructure and where required make 

adequate provision for new infrastructure, ensuring that there are no detrimental 

effects on the area and community. Where necessary, Planning Obligations will be 

sought to ensure that the effects of no developments are fully addressed in order to 

make the development acceptable”. 

Policy I1 (Infrastructure Requirements) then states that “In addition to infrastructure 

improvements necessary to make a development acceptable in health, safety and 

amenity terms, additional works or funding may be required to ensure that, where 

appropriate, the impact of new development is mitigated. These requirements will 

include consideration of and appropriate provision for: Affordable housing; Open 

space and recreation facilities; Welsh language infrastructure (in language Sensitive 

Areas); Community facilities including community hubs; Biodiversity, environmental 

and conservation interests; Improving access to facilities and services including the 

provision of walking and cycling routes; Historic and built environment and public 

realm improvements; Community and public transport; Education and training. 

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 came into force on 6th April 

2010 in England and Wales. They introduced limitations on the use of planning 

obligations (Reg. 122 refers). As of 6th April 2010, a planning obligation may only 

legally constitute a reason for granting planning permission if it is:  

(a)  necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;  

(b)  directly related to the development; and  

(c)  fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.  

In this case, the proposal relates to a planning application for the development of 

3no dwellings. 

In view of the type and form of development proposed in this location, having regard 

to local circumstances and needs arising from the development, the following 

planning obligations are considered necessary to make the development acceptable 

in planning terms and to meet the policy and legislative tests for planning obligations. 

Public Open Space / Children’s Play Facilities 

Policy OS1 states where there is a quantitative deficiency in outdoor sport, children’s 

play, informal space or allotments, provision will be sought, including the requirement 

for maintenance in conjunction with all new residential developments of 3 or more 

dwellings, based on the following standards:  

 

Open Space Standard 

Outdoor Sport 1.6 hectares per 1.000 population 

Children’s Play 0.25 hectares per 1,000 population 

Page 42



Informal Space 0.55 hectares per 1,000 population 

Allotments 0.19 hectares per 1,000 population 

 

Having regard to the ‘Open Space Assessment 2013, produced in support of the 

adopted Local Development Plan, it is noted that there are existing ward shortfalls. 

Accordingly, the existing deficiencies would be exacerbated by the increase in 

population arising from the proposed development, and there is a need for the 

development to contribute towards addressing such deficiency.  

The development would trigger an Open Space contribution, due to the shortfalls 

located within the Glynneath ward. The following table conveys the breakdown 

calculations of the Open Space contribution.  

 

 

LDP Policy OS1 

Categorisation  

Total Development Proposal Open 

Space Requirement 

  

Scheme total 

cost 

Outdoor sport pitch  79 £852 

Outside sport non-pitch 31 £3,090 

Designated play space 17 £2,565 

Informal space 0 £0 

Allotments 13 £144 

Total £6,651 

 

As conveyed within the table an Open Space contribution of £6,651 would be sought 

from the development for all Open Space categories. The applicant has agreed to 

the Open Space contribution which will be secured by a Section 106 agreement.  

Other Matters 

As identified earlier in this report, a number of objections were received in response 

following the publicity exercise. In response to the main issues raised which have not 

been addressed elsewhere in this report, the following comments are made: 

 FCA has been prepared however the area in front of the gates floods in bad 

weather as per land registry map – there is a culvert located near the access 

of the site and as such some surface water is expected.  

 Several documents within the planning application that are incorrect which is 

misleading and untrue, such as within the planning statement – the Planning 
Page 43



Statement has been provided by the applicant in support of the application, 

however a separate assessment of the impacts associated with the proposed 

development has been carried out by the case officer and is detailed above.  

 Planning Statement doesn’t include TPO history – A Tree Survey was carried 

out and submitted in support of the application which has been reviewed by 

the Council’s Tree Officer and an assessment of the developments impacts 

upon the existing trees and wider biodiversity has been set out above.   

 Photos submitted are misleading – the photographs have been provided by 

the applicant and don’t appear to be misleading, however the case officer and 

Highway Officer carried out their own site visits. 

 Access onto the land is not owned by the applicant – this has been identified 

within the application and notice has been published in the press by the 

applicant and the required certificate has been submitted as part of the 

application.  

 Site is not greenfield or brownfield it is a registered coal tip (category C/D). 

Don’t believe coal tip safety is being addressed in this application – as noted 

above the Coal Authority, as well as the Council’s Contaminated Land officer 

and Engineering Sections have been consulted on the application and their 

responses detailed within the above appraisal.   

 DCWW correspondence ratifies that DCWW does not support this application 

as a lack of suitability to any possible water main in its current format – 

response from DCWW discussed above and conditions will be attached.  

 Land has not been accessed regularly by vehicles, an 8 ton lorry was parked 

in the field gateway blocking access – point acknowledged but access is 

existing.  

 Right of access formalised with Land Registry but no such agreement on 

Land Registry – not a material planning matter.  

 Add published in Western Mail however newspaper add went out after 

document was written so no way they can know if any responses have been 

received as implied in this application – applicant has carried out the required 

land ownership exercise with a notice also been published for previously 

withdrawn application.  

 Junction currently used to turn – this is an informal arrangement, the junction 

is not a formal turning area.  

 Planning statement states prescriptive easement to the applicant however this 

is false and only recently applied for – not material planning matter.  

 Overlooking and loss of privacy and land raised above property – addressed 

in report above.  

 Flooding and the culvert from the mountain – site will be subject to a SAB 

application to deal with surface water, and the proposed development is not 

Page 44



located within the identified flood zone and the existing culvert has been 

acknowledged.  

 Contaminated Land due to dumped waste – The Authority’s Contaminated 

Land officer has been consulted and responses noted above. 

 New entrance may uproot tree – two trees will be removed by development 

and updated survey to be conditioned.  

 No utilities/ services on site so could be overuse of present drainage system – 

DCWW have confirmed capacity within sewer network and condition will be 

attached to provide gigabit broadband trunking .  

 No notice put up for residents – two site notices have been displayed as part 

of the application.  

 House building needed for first time homes, the three proposed are not in 

short supply – while the number of bedrooms has not yet been established 

due to the outline nature of the application, it is acknowledged that the 

dwellings proposed are fairly large in scale. However, the Authority’s Housing 

Need is for all types of housing not just 1 and 2 bed properties.  

 Building in the field would be difficult and expensive and take quite some time 

to be suitable to build on – construction cost is not a planning matter.  

 HGVs increase and accessing the site – HGVs accessing the site would be 

largely during the construction of the development, which will be temporary.  

 Site visit is essential – a site visit has been undertaken.  

 Difficult to see how developer/ builder could mitigate against the protests put 

forward as no alternative access to site – concerns have been acknowledged 

however the highway is existing.  

 Owner of Dan Y Graig has right of access across the field – Private Rights of 

Access over land is a private civil matter.   

 P2014/0836 application previously refused on highway grounds. No change in 

access since 2014 application and increased number of cars has only 

increased pressure and hazard hasn’t changed – 2014 application reason for 

refusal addressed within highway section of the report.  

CONCLUSION 

The decision to recommend planning permission has been taken in accordance with 

Section 38 of The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which requires that, 

in determining a planning application the determination must be in accordance with 

the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 

Development Plan comprises Future Wales - the National Plan 2040 and the Neath 

Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011–2026) adopted January 2016. 

It is considered that the proposal represents an appropriate form of development, in 

principle, that would have no unacceptable impact on visual amenity, neighbouring 
Page 45



amenity, highway and pedestrian safety, biodiversity, trees and contaminated land. 

Accordingly, the proposed development is in accordance with Policies SP3, SC1, 

OS1, EN6, EN7, TR2 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

It is further considered that the decision complies with Future Wales - the National 

Plan 2040, and the Council’s well-being objectives and the sustainable development 

principle in accordance with the requirements of the Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

 

Recommendation: To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions 
and upon the signing of a Section 106 Agreement with the following Heads of Terms:  
 
The payment of £6,651 towards the provision of off-site open space facilities within 
the ward of Glyneath Central and East.  
 
It is further recommended that if within 3 months of the date of this resolution the 
S106 Agreement is not signed the application shall be refused for the following 
reason: 
 
‘Through the failure to sign the required S106 agreement to secure the required for 
offsite compensation for open space provision, the application fails to accord with 
Policies SP10 and OS1 of the Adopted Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan.’ 
 
Conditions: 
 
 
Time Limit Conditions 
 
 1 Details of the access, appearance, landscaping, layout, and scale, (hereinafter 

called "the reserved matters") shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority before any development begins and the 
development shall be carried out as approved. 

  
 Reason: 
 The application was made for outline planning permission. 
 
 2 Any application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local 

Planning Authority not later than three years from the date of this permission.  
  
 Reason:  
 To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990. 
 
 3 The development shall begin either before the expiration of five years from the 

date of this permission or before the expiration of two years from the date of 
approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the 
later. 

  
 Reason: 
 To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990. 
 
List of Approved Plans 

Page 46



 
 4 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans and documents:  
  
 Utility Survey Plan ALS/5690  
 Tree Protection Plan PC22-23 
 Topographical Survey ALS/4217 
 2229-007 Rev H Proposed site section and layout  
 Access Statement AMC/24 
 Design Statement March 2024 
 Flood Consequence Assessment May 2022 
 Planning Statement HRT 2024 
 Preliminary Ecology Assessment July 2023 
 Tree Report April 2022 
 Green Infrastructure Statement 21.3.23 
 Ownership Plan J076/01  
  
 Reason:  
 In the interests of clarity. 
 
Pre-Commencement Conditions 
 
 5 As part of the first reserved matters application, a scheme demonstrating the 

measures for the protection of the structural condition of the 500mm water main 
located adjacent to the southern side boundary, including distance and 
relationship with the development, shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved protection measures shall be 
implemented in full before any other development hereby permitted has been 
commenced, and shall be retained as such at all times thereafter. 

  
 Reason:  
 To ensure that the proposed development does not affect the integrity of the 

public water supply system in the interests of public health and safety.  
  
 
 6 As part of the first reserved matters application, full details of the site access 

and refuse vehicle turning area within the site shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall 
demonstrate the widening of the access and the refuse vehicle turning area can 
be built to adoptable standards, with pavement, to ensure that the maximum of 
30m from the furthest property to the adopted highway, together with details of 
a bin store collection points adjacent to the turning area.  An updated tree 
survey shall also be submitted in support of the submitted details and shall 
include a compensation planting scheme at a ratio of 3:1 for any additional 
trees lost by the construction of the access and turning area. The development 
shall be completed in accordance with the approved details prior to the first 
beneficial occupation of any dwelling, and the access shall remain available for 
the designated use in perpetuity. The replacement tree planting for the access 
works shall be carried out in the first planting season following the occupation 
of the first buildings, and any trees which within a period of 5 years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged 
or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar 
size and species. 

  
 Reason:  

Page 47



 In the interest of highway safety and to ensure the development complies with 
Policy SP15, BE1 and TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
 7 As part of the first reserved matters application, full details, including section 

plans, of the upgrade works to the access road in proximity to the 1000mm 
culvert that runs under the existing access, shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The road and access shall then be 
completed in accordance with the approved details prior to the first beneficial 
use of the dwellings hereby approved, and retained as such thereafter.  

  
 Reason:  
 To ensure to protection of the existing culvert and to ensure that the 

development complies with Policy BE1 of the Local Development Plan. 
 
 8 As part of the first reserved matters application, a scheme detailing the 

maximum visibility that can be achieved from the existing access point along 
the main leg of Glan Gwrelych shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be completed in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the first beneficial occupation of any part of 
the development, and shall thereafter be maintained free of any obstruction 
exceeding 0.6m in height for as long as the development exists.  

  
 Reason:  
 In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety and to ensure the development 

complies with Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 
 9 Notwithstanding the submitted details, as part of the first reserved matters 

application details of the existing and proposed site ground levels, retaining 
works and sections, proposed street-scene and property finished floor levels 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 
and retained as such thereafter. 

 Reason: 
 In the interest of visual amenity and to ensure compliance with Policy BE1 of 

the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan 
 
10 As part of the first reserved matters application, a scheme to enable the 

provision of gigabit capable broadband infrastructure from the site boundary to 
the dwellings/buildings hereby permitted has been submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 

 Reason 
 To support the roll-out of digital communications infrastructure across Wales in 

accordance with Policy 13 of Future Wales 
 
11 As part of the first reserved matters application details of the proposed siting, 

design and finish of all proposed means of enclosure to all property boundaries 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
The means of enclosure shall be erected in accordance with the approved 
details prior to the occupation of the proposed development and retained as 
such thereafter. 

  
 Reason:   
 In the interest of visual amenity and to ensure compliance with Policy BE1 of 

the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

Page 48



 
12 As part of the first reserved matters application, samples of the materials to be 

used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby 
permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 

 Reason: 
 In the interest of the visual amenity of the area and to ensure the development 

complies with Policy BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
 Development Plan 
 
13 As part of the first reserved matters application, a scheme of landscaping for 

the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme shall include details of the proposed 6no replacement 
trees to the front gardens and the biodiversity enhancement measures 
proposed within the Green Infrastructure Statement. All planting, seeding or 
turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in 
the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the buildings 
or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner; and any trees 
or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall 
be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species. 

  
 Reason: 
 In the interests of maintaining a suitable scheme of landscaping to protect the 

visual amenity of the area, to maintain the special qualities of the landscape 
and habitats through the protection, creation and enhancement of links 
between sites and their protection for amenity, landscape and biodiversity 
value, and to ensure the development complies with Policies SP15 and BE1 of 
the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
14 Notwithstanding the submitted details, the first reserved matters application 

shall include provision for one off-street parking space per bedroom (up to a 
maximum of three) for each proposed dwelling which shall have a maximum 
gradient of 1 in 9 , the driveway shall be set back from the private drive by 6m, 
with each parking space measuring a minimum of 3.6m wide and 4.8m in 
depth. 

 The parking spaces shall be provided prior to first use of the dwelling hereby 
approved, and shall be surfaced in porous material (or a provision must be 
made to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable or porous 
area within the curtilage of the dwelling) and shall be retained open and free for 
parking use, and permanently maintained so that they continue to comply with 
the above requirements. 

  
 Reason: 
 In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety and to ensure the development 

complies with Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan 
 
15 No development shall commence until details of a method statement and risk 

assessment for the protection of the structural condition of the strategic sewer 
adjacent to the development site has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved protection measures shall be 
implemented in full before any other development hereby permitted has 
commenced, and shall be retained at all times for the duration of the approved 
operations including the restoration works.   

Page 49



  
 Reason:  
 To ensure that the proposed development does not affect the integrity of the 

public sewerage systemin the interests of public health and safety 
 
16 Prior to the commencement of work on site, including site clearance, all the 

trees shown on the tree protection plan (PC22-23) and/or any trees whose 
canopies overhang the site shall be protected by strong fencing, in accordance 
with BS5837:2012 and as detailed within the Tree Report section 4.2 
submitted. The fencing shall be erected in accordance with the approved 
details before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought onto the site 
for the purposes of the development, and shall be maintained until all 
equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. 
Nothing shall be stored or placed within any fenced area, and the ground levels 
within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, 
without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason: 
 To ensure all existing trees are protected throughout the construction of the 

development, in the interest of visual amenity, and to ensure the development 
complies with Policy BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
17 Prior to the commencement of development on site, a site wide Construction 
 Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and 
 approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall include: 
  
 -Construction methods: details of materials, how waste generated will be 

managed; 
 -General Site Management: details of the construction programme including 

timetable, details of site clearance; details of site construction drainage, 
containments areas, appropriately sized buffer zones between storage areas 
(of spoil, oils, fuels, concrete mixing and washing areas) and any watercourse 
or surface drain. 

 -Highway Management: details of the parking of vehicles of site operatives and 
visitors, loading and unloading of plant and materials, storage of plant and 
materials used in constructing the development, the erection and maintenance 
of security hoarding including decorative displays and facilities for public 
viewing, where appropriate, wheel washing facilities, measures to control the 
emission of dust and dirt during demolition and construction; and a scheme for 
recycling/disposing of waste resulting from construction works.  

 -Biodiversity Management: details of tree and hedgerow protection; invasive 
species management; species and habitats protection, avoidance and 
mitigation measures. 

 -Soil Management: details of topsoil strip, storage and amelioration for reuse. 
 -CEMP Masterplan: details of the extent and phasing of development; location 

of landscape and environmental resources; design proposals and objectives for 
integration and mitigation measures. 

 -Resource Management: details of fuel and chemical storage and containment; 
details of waste generation and its management; details of water consumption, 
wastewater and energy use 

 -Pollution Prevention: demonstrate how relevant Guidelines for Pollution 
Prevention and best practice will be implemented, including details of 
emergency spill procedures and incident response plan. o Details of the 
persons and bodies responsible for activities associated with the CEMP and 

Page 50



emergency contact details o Landscape/ecological clerk of works to ensure 
construction compliance with approved plans and environmental regulations.  

  
 The CEMP shall be implemented as approved during the site preparation and 

construction phases of the development. 
  
 Reason:  
 To ensure necessary management measures are agreed prior to 

commencement of development and implemented for the protection of the 
environment during construction, in accordance with Policies BE1, TR2, EN6, 
EN7 and EN8 of the Local Development Plan. 

 
Action Conditions 
 
18 Notwithstanding the requirements of condition 6, prior to the first occupation of 

any dwelling hereby approved, a tree replacement planting scheme shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme shall include details of the 6no. proposed heavy standard trees to be 
planted, together with the planting location, species and planting methods. All 
planting, comprised in the approved details shall be carried out in the first 
planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the dwellings or the 
completion of the development, whichever is the sooner; and any trees  which 
within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are 
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of similar size and species. 

  
 Reason:  
 In the interests of biodiversity, and to ensure the development complies with 

PPW12 and Policies SP15 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan. 

 
19 In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 

approved development that was not previously identified, work on site shall 
cease immediately and shall be reported in writing to the Local Planning 
Authority. A Desk Study, Site Investigation, Risk Assessment and where 
necessary a Remediation Strategy must be undertaken in accordance with the 
following document:- Land Contamination: A Guide for Developers (WLGA, 
WAG & EAW, July 2006). This document shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. Prior to occupation of the 
development, a verification report which demonstrates the effectiveness of the 
agreed remediation, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority.  

    
 Reason:  
 To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 

neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be 
carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
off site receptors, and to ensure compliance with Policies SP16 and EN8 of the 
Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
20 Prior to the first beneficial occupation of the dwellings hereby approved, the 

integrated sparrow terrace or similar and integrated bat block shall be provided 
within each dwelling, in accordance with the Green Infrastructure Statement 
and retained as such thereafter.   

Page 51



 Reason: 
 In the interest of biodiversity, and to accord with Policy SP15 of the adopted 

Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 
21 No piling activities for the construction of the authorised development shall 

commence until a piling method statement has been submitted to and approved 
by the local planning authority. The Piling Method Statement shall detail all 
available piling options, together with the pro's and con's associated with each, 
before identifying the proposed method of piling and any necessary mitigation 
methods required.  All piling works on site shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved method statement. 

  
 Reason: 
 For the protection of residential amenity during the construction phase, in 

accordance with policy BE1. 
 
Regulatory Conditions 
 
22 Plot 1 to the west of the application site shall be restricted to the minimum 

parameters hereby approved.  
  
 Reason: 
 To comply with the requirements of Policy BE1 of the Local Development Plan 

and the Town and Country Planning (General 
 Development Procedure) (Amendment) (Wales) Order 2008, and in the 
 interests of clarity. 
 
23 Notwithstanding the requirements of condition 22 in relation to Plot 1, the 

development hereby approved is restricted to those parameters as set out 
within the application drawings hereby approved. 

  
 Reason: 
 To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Development Procedure) (Amendment) (Wales) Order 2008, and in the 
interests of clarity. 

 
24 Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1, Class E of the Town and 

Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended 
for Wales) (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with or without 
modification), no buildings shall be erected other than those expressly 
authorised by this permission and identified on the approved drawings for plot 1 
(the western plot) of the application site.  

  
 Reason:  
 In order to safeguard the amenities of the area by enabling the Local Planning 

Authority to consider whether planning permission should be granted for 
garages or outbuildings having regard to the particular layout and design of the 
development, residential amenity, and to accord with Policies BE1 and SC1 of 
the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
25 No surface water and/or land drainage shall be allowed to connect directly or 

indirectly with the public sewerage network including any increase in the roof 
area of the building /or impermeable surfaces within the curtilage. 

  
 Reason: 

Page 52



 To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the 
health and safety of existing residents and ensure no pollution or detriment to 
the environment, and to and ensure the development complies with Policy 
SP16 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
26 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended for Wales) (or any order 
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), there shall be 
no extensions to Plot 1 (to the west of the application site) hereby permitted 
without the prior grant of planning permission in that behalf.  

  
 Reason:  
 In order to safeguard the amenities of the area by enabling the Local Planning 

Authority to consider whether planning permission should be granted for 
extensions, having regard to the particular layout and design of the 
development and need to protect the amenity of nearby properties, and to 
accord with Policies BE1 and SC1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development 
Plan. 

 
27 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended for Wales) (or any order 
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no doors, 
windows or dormer windows (other than those expressly authorised by this 
permission) shall be constructed without the prior grant of planning permission 
in that behalf, for plot 1 to the west of the application site.    

  
 Reason:  
 In order to safeguard the amenities of the area by enabling the Local Planning 

Authority to consider whether planning permission should be granted for such 
additional windows and doors, having regard to the particular layout and design 
of the development and need to protect the amenity of nearby properties, and 
to accord with Policies BE1 and SC1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan. 

 
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 

APPEALS DETERMINED 

a) Planning Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0011 Planning Ref: P2023/0675 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-03563-X6Z3W4 
 
Appellant: Mr Marc O'Mahoney 
 

Proposal: Two detached dwellings (outline with all matters 
reserved) 

 

Site Address: Plot Of Land South Of March Hywell  March 
Hywell Cilfrew Neath SA10 8ND   

 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 11 December 2024 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0012 Planning Ref: P2024/0160 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-03604-M1V7G6 
 
Appellant: Mr Penny 
 

Proposal: Detached dwelling and associated works 

 

Site Address: School House New Road Gwaun Cae Gurwen 
Ammanford Neath Port Talbot SA18 1UN  

 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 30 December 2024 

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



 
Decision: Appeal Allowed with Conditions 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
b) Enforcement Appeals 
 
 
 

Page 56



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 
 
DELEGATED APPLICATIONS  
DETERMINED BETWEEN 9 DECEMBER 2024 AND 20 JANUARY 
2025 
 

App No:  P2022/0726 

Proposal: Residential development of 10 no. dwellings with 
associated parking and works 

Location: Former Gwaun Cae Gurwen Primary School    Water 
Street  Gwaun Cae Gurwen   SA18 1HA     

Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2023/0525 

Proposal: Provision/reinstatement of door to rear ground floor 
elevation and repairs to Grade II Listed Building 

Location: Sea Cadet Corps   Road From Riverside Road To 
Harbour House  Port Talbot  SA13 1RH     

Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0526 

Proposal: Listed Building Consent for provision/reinstatement of 
door to rear ground floor elevation and repairs. 

Location: Sea Cadet Corps   Road From Riverside Road To 
Harbour House  Port Talbot  SA13 1RH     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0536 

Proposal: Outline planning application for the erection of five 
individual houses (all matters reserved) 

Location: Site On The Corner Of   Is-Y-Bryniau And Lewis 
Avenue,   Cwmllynfell,   Swansea     

Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Cwmllynfell & Ystalyfera 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



App No:  P2023/0638 

Proposal: APPROVED BY WELSH MINISTERS - Development 
of National Significance: Proposed onshore wind farm 
and solar array together with associated equipment, 
infrastructure and ancillary works. (Planning and 
Environment Decisions Wales consultation to Local 
Planning Authority on an application for a Development 
of National Significance) 

Location: Fforch Dwm Farm  Lane From Fforch Dwm Road To 
Fforch Dwm Farm  Pontrhydyfen  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: No Objections 
Ward: Resolven & TonnaResolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0790 

Proposal: Development of National Significance: Proposed 
ground mounted photo voltaic solar farm with 
associated equipment, infrastructure, grid connection 
and ancillary works. (Planning and Environment 
Decisions Wales consultation to Local Planning 
Authority on an application for a Development of 
National Significance) 

Location: Land Off  Graig Y Pal  Glais  Swansea     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2024/0036 

Proposal: Construction of a drive through coffee shop along with 
associated access, parking (including 16 EV charging 
bays) and landscaping 

Location: Land Adjacent To The B4290   Llandarcy  Neath  SA10 
6JD     

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2024/0364 

Page 58



Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(parking layout), condition 4 (CEMP), condition 5 
(demolition and construction method statement), 
condition 6 (land contamination), condition 7 
(remediation) and condition 8 (verification) of planning 
application P2022/0491 determined on 30.05.2023. 

Location: Forest View   Neath Road  Resolven  SA11 4AN     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2024/0365 

Proposal: Non-material amendment application to amend the 
wording of condition 3 (Parking layout) , condition 4 
(CEMP), 5 (Demolition and Construction Method 
Statement) , Condition 6 (Land Contamination), 
Condition 7 (Remediation) , and 8 (Verification) of 
planning application P2022/0491 determined on 
30.05.2023. 

Location: Forest View   Neath Road  Resolven  SA11 1AN     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2024/0373 

Proposal: Change of use of 1980's prefabricated Hall (D1 use 
class) to a two-bedroom dwellinghouse (C3 use class) 
and associated internal and external alterations to the 
listed building, which includes the removal of the rear 
external wall to create covered outdoor space. The 
church will remain class D1. 

Location: St Catherines Church, Church Hall   Old Road  Neath  
SA11 2BT     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath East 

 

App No:  P2024/0374 

Page 59



Proposal: Listed building consent application: Internally: removal 
of glass-fibre and mineral fibre lay-in grid ceiling tile 
support systems and suspended ceiling grid, fit plaster 
boarded and insulated ceilings, encapsulate existing 
old thermoplastic tiles with modern finishes, strip out 
the existing male and female toilets and refit to serve 
the proposed new internal layout and meet building 
regulation standards, construct internal partitions using 
lightweight timber studding and plasterboard 
partitioning. Externally: repair existing fibre-cement 
slates on modern church hall; indent formed in the east 
elevation of modern church hall and modern double-
glazed doors fitted, PVC framed windows and doors 
retained and repaired as necessary, repair and repoint 
rubblestone walls of the church perimeter boundary 
features, repair flashings on covered staircase link with 
code 5 or heavier cover flashings at the intersection 
with that of the main church, repair concrete tiles 
pitched roof covering on covered staircase link, repair 
/replace existing flat felt built-up modern roof coverings 
on covered staircase link to match existing or utilise 
similar but enhanced products, repair / replace PVC 
clad with decayed timber beneath as found, reinstate 
gate piers at the road junction with the Old Road, 
installation of two windows within the principal elevation 
of the church hall, installation of new internal and 
external doors to the existing covered staircase link 
with St Catherines Church, installation of two Velux 
windows within the north-western roof slope and six 
Velux windows within the south-eastern roof slope, 
removal of the majority of the rear external wall of the 
church hall to create the covered outdoor space - the 
works for which would include blocking up the existing 
windows within the north-western side elevation and 
one existing window within the south-eastern side 
elevation, together with the installation of full width bi-
folding doors within the resultant rear elevation. 

Location: St Catherines Church, Church Hall   Old Road  Neath  
SA11 2BT     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath East 

 

Page 60



App No:  P2024/0401 

Proposal: Construction of one two-storey dwelling and associated 
works. 

Location: Plot 20  Forest Lodge Lane  Cwmavon  Port Talbot     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0435 

Proposal: Proposed development of 6 no. industrial workshop 
units (use class B2), highways arrangements, parking, 
drainage, landscaping and all associated works 

Location: Nant Y Cafn Business Park  Seven Sisters  Neath   
SA10 9ES     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2024/0438 

Proposal: Discharge of conditions 11 (provision of Gigabit 
Broadband), 13 (Biodiversity Enhancement and 
Management Plan) and 14 (Highway engineering 
scheme) of planning permission P2022/1063 for the 
development of 43 no. affordable dwellings and 
associated works including a new access, an internal 
road network, landscaping, sustainable drainage, car, 
cycle parking and partial demolition of school. 

Location: Former Dyffryn Lower School   Talcennau Road  Port 
Talbot  SA13 1EP     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0455 

Proposal: Proposed change of use of first floor from 
office/storage to 1no bedroom flat (use class C3). 

Location: Station House   Station Road  Briton Ferry  SA11 2SU     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Briton Ferry East 

 

App No:  P2024/0458 

Page 61



Proposal: Proposed change of use of chapel (D1) to dwelling 
(C3) with widening of the existing access to provide off-
road parking, the installation of roof lights and 
installation of door and access steps to side elevation. 

Location: Margam Road Calvinistic Methodist Chapel   Margam 
Road  Taibach  SA13 2BN     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0491 

Proposal: Refurbish the existing bar at The Orangery, Margam 
Country Park 

Location: The Orangery   Margam Country Park,   Water Street  
Margam  SA13 2TJ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0492 

Proposal: External alterations including redesign of existing 
shopfront windows. 

Location: 35 Windsor Road  Neath  SA11 1NB       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0512 

Proposal: Change of use of building to provide 1no. 1 bed flat and 
2no. 2 bed flats with the retention of bakery at ground 
floor. 

Location: 36A High Street  Glynneath  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 5BU   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2024/0513 

Proposal: Change of use from existing timber extraction track to 
full forest road with clear span arch culvert built within. 

Page 62



Location: The road is located within the Pelenna Forest block 
approximately 3.3km ESE of Clyne. The site is an 
existing timber extraction track that connects the wider 
Pelenna forest block with the existing windfarm.           

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2024/0532 

Proposal: Part two storey and part single storey rear extension 
with balcony installed on the rear elevation (amended 
ownership certificate). 

Location: 11 Rosser Terrace  Main Road  Cilfrew  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA10 8LH   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberdulais 

 

App No:  P2024/0534 

Proposal: Change of use from a C3 dwelling house to a C4 
House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO) consisting of 4 
bedrooms and 2 bathrooms for up to 4 people. 

Location: 54 Tydraw Street  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  SA13 
1BR     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0539 

Proposal: Change of use of first and second floors to 1 no. 3-
bedroom House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) (Use 
Class C4) and associated works, including the 
installation of velux windows 

Location: 54 Wind Street  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 3EN     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0541 

Proposal: Listed building consent for the replacement of internal 
doors and repairs to ironmongery to improve security 
and health and safety issues. 

Location: 5 Windsor Road  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 1LP     

Page 63



Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0546 

Proposal: Two storey side extension, front porch extension, 
fenestration alterations and demolition and rebuild of 
single storey garage. 

Location: 30 Taillwyd Road  Neath Abbey  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 7DY     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2024/0553 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 25 
(piling method statement) of planning application 
P2023/0369 determined on 16.02.2024. 

Location: Land At Heol Crwys   Cwmafan  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA12 9NT   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0559 

Proposal: Discharge of condition 3 (contaminated land) of 
planning consent P2020/0238 (Demolition of existing 
bungalow and construction of 1.5 storey replacement 
dwelling with associated car parking, driveway and 
engineering works) granted on 23rd April 2020. 

Location: 89 Wenallt Road  Tonna  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 3QH     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2024/0564 

Proposal: 4m crown lift on one Lime tree covered by tree 
Preservation Order T344/T20. 

Location: 22 Cefn Parc  Skewen  Neath Port Talbot  SA10 6YR     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

Page 64



App No:  P2024/0576 

Proposal: Change the use of land to incorporate into the 
residential curtilage of No. 45 Depot Road and the 
construction of a timber and steel garage for the 
parking of 1 No. vehicle and storage of gardening 
equipment 

Location: Teg-Dwyn  45 Depot Road  Cwmavon  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA12 9BA   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0595 

Proposal: Retention of the change of use of land for garden area, 
retention of existing shed/log store, demolition of rear 
outbuilding, proposed two storey side and rear 
extension and alteration to roof on existing single 
storey rear extension 

Location: 2 Maes Y Pergwm  Glynneath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 5EA     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Blaengwrach & Glynneath West 

 

App No:  P2024/0598 

Proposal: Installation of floodlighting facility (6 X 15 metre 
columns) to an existing football pitch. 

Location: Evans Bevan Playing Fields  Baglan Boys & Girls Club   
Pinewood Terrace  Baglan  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2024/0601 

Proposal: Proposed single storey rear extension, two-storey side 
and rear extension, and rear dormer extension. Plus 
construction of front bay window and replacement 
canopy style porch 

Location: 23 Heol Y Berllan  Crynant  Neath Port Talbot  SA10 
8PD     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

Page 65



 

App No:  P2024/0631 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Location: 2 Tynywaun Cottages  Efail Fach  Pontrhydyfen  Neath 

Port Talbot  SA11 3QP   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2024/0636 

Proposal: Discharge of Condition 6 (past coal mining activity) and 
11 (detailed mine gas risk assessment) of planning 
consent P2023/0958 (demolition of existing 
dwellinghouse and the development of a replacement 
dwellinghouse, with new vehicular access) granted on 
23rd May 2024. 

Location: 7 Ten Acre Wood  Margam  Neath Port Talbot  SA13 
2SU     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0640 

Proposal: Section 73 application to remove condition 13 (Gas 
Protection) of Planning Permission P2023/0785 for a 
detached industrial building (use class B8 - storage and 
distribution) with associated parking, drainage and 
landscaping. 

Location: Land At    Mardon Park  Central Avenue  Baglan  SA12 
7AX   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2024/0647 

Proposal: Erection of 1 No. replacement village sign 
Location: Corner Of Danybont And Queen Street  Pontrhydyfen  

Neath Port Talbot       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

Page 66



App No:  P2024/0649 

Proposal: Single storey front extension and roof canopy 
Location: 32 St Helier Drive  Sandfields  Neath Port Talbot  SA12 

7AW     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2024/0653 

Proposal: Change of use from office (B1) to boxing gym (D2). 
Location: 18-20 Station Road  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  

SA13 1JB     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0655 

Proposal: Construction of a three-storey side extension and 
single storey rear extension. 

Location: 62 Darren Wen  Baglan  Neath Port Talbot  SA12 8YN     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2024/0656 

Proposal: Demolition of existing ground floor conservatory and 
proposed construction of first floor rear extension 
serving a bathroom, and proposed construction of flat 
roof ground floor rear extension serving kitchen/diner. 

Location: 3 Bosworth Road  Skewen  Neath Port Talbot  SA10 
6BU     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2024/0658 

Page 67



Proposal: Certificate of Lawful Development (existing) for use of 
the property as a residential dwelling (Use Class C3) in 
non-compliance with Condition 2 (unit shall be ancillary 
to Wernandrew Farm and not operate as a separate 
dwelling) and Condition 3 (access points submitted 
prior to occupation and retained) of planning 
application ref P2012/0157, granted 06/08/2012. 

Location: Threashers Barn  Wernandrew Farm  Lane From 
Cardonnel Road To Wernandrew Farm  Skewen  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2024/0661 

Proposal: Proposed side and rear two storey extension, single 
storey side extension, single storey rear extension and 
outbuilding to rear of garden. 

Location: 83 Glannant Way  Cimla  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 
3YW     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2024/0664 

Proposal: Vary Condition 2 (list of approved plans) of planning 
permission P2023/0600 dated 31/07/2024 (for one 
proposed detached dwelling with associated double 
garage and off-street parking) to reposition the dwelling 
2m back 

Location: Land Adjacent To  14 Samuels Road  Cwmllynfell  
Swansea  SA9 2GT   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cwmllynfell & Ystalyfera 

 

App No:  P2024/0667 

Page 68



Proposal: Works to trees covered by Tree Preservation Order 
T270. Proposed works include: 
T2 Sycamore - Remove all deadwood  
T16 Yew - Remove lower branches by crown lifting to 
5m 
T22 - T29 Sycamores - Reduce branches above 
gardens by 2m 
T30 Sycamore - Reduce over extended branches by 
2.5m 
T32 Beech - Reduce over extended branches by 2.5m 
and lift crown to 5m 
T34 Beech - Reduce over extended branches by 2.5m 
T36-T39 Sycamores - Reduce branches overhanging 
gardens by 2.5m 
T44-T46 - Limes - Lift crowns to 5m 
T54-55 Sycamores - Reduce branches adjacent to 
house by 2.5m 

Location: Waunceirch House  Lane From Wern Fraith To Lon 
Brynteg  Dwr Y Felin  Neath Port Talbot  SA10 7RT   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2024/0670 

Proposal: Demolish existing rear conservatory and construct 
single storey rear extension 

Location: 42 Pentwyn Baglan Road  Baglan  Neath Port Talbot  
SA12 8EB     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2024/0672 

Page 69



Proposal: Section 73 application to remove condition 3 (obscure 
glazing the southern side facing window serving the 
dining room) and to vary condition 1 (list of approved 
plans) of planning permission P2023/0446 dated 
14/09/2023 (which was for the regularisation of 
previously approved planning consent P2010/0040 for 
a canopy to front and side elevations, first-floor 
extension to side/rear elevation and two storey 
extension to rear elevation; and to amend materials 
and incorporate obscure glazing, as well as the 
construction of a rear detached garage with retaining 
works and raised platform to rear) to allow the southern 
side facing window serving the ground floor dining 
room to be non-obscured  / clear glazed. 

Location: 18 Martyns Avenue  Seven Sisters  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 9DR     

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2024/0675 

Proposal: Subdivision of an A1 retail unit into two units for the 
retention of a nail bar (Sui Generic) and a proposed 
food/drink takeaway (use class A3)  
 

Location: 272 Margam Road  Margam  Neath Port Talbot  SA13 
2DB     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0677 

Proposal: Change of use of land to use as garden area with 
boundary wall to enclose and single storey side and 
rear extension. 

Location: 4 Chapel Close  Aberavon  Neath Port Talbot  SA12 
7DB     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0678 

Page 70



Proposal: Proposed two storey and single storey rear extension 
and porch extension to front elevation. 

Location: 46 Ashwood Drive  Gellinudd  Pontardawe  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA8 3HL   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2024/0680 

Proposal: Raising the ridge and eaves height to accommodate a 
new rear dormer for additional living space and the 
replacement of the rear conservatory roof 

Location: 14 Thorney Road  Baglan  Neath Port Talbot  SA12 
8LW     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2024/0682 

Proposal: Installation of 1 No. interpretation panel (Richard 
Burton Memorial Trail) on railings of the Bethel chapel 

Location: The Vestry  Aqueduct Terrace  Pontrhydyfen  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA12 9SA   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0684 

Proposal: Proposed two storey rear extension to replace existing 
conservatory. 

Location: 15 St Davids Park  Margam  Neath Port Talbot  SA13 
2PA     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0689 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawful Development Proposed - Single 
storey rear extension 

Location: 74 Pine Valley  Cwmavon  Neath Port Talbot  SA12 
9NG     

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

Page 71



 

App No:  P2024/0693 

Proposal: The installation and retention of concrete hardstanding 
for industrial use associated with the continued 
operations of the steelworks, and landscaping, green 
infrastructure and drainage works 

Location: Port Talbot Steelworks, Compound   Grange Road  
Margam  SA13 2NG     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0700 

Proposal: Discharge of condition 14 (Landscape Maintenance 
and Management Plan) of planning permission 
P2023/0101 granted on 16.08.2024 (for the erection of 
a freestanding drive-thru/restaurant, car parking, 
landscaping and associated works) 

Location: Tesco Supermarket   A4067 From Glais To 
Pontardawe  Alltwen  Pontardawe  SA8 3AZ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2024/0707 

Proposal: Installation of Juliet balconies to front and rear 
elevations, addition of external wall insulation and 
through colour render to whole building and 
replacement uPvc windows. 

Location: The Queens Court  Victoria Road  Sandfields  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA12 6AU   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2024/0709 

Proposal: Demolish existing side single storey extension and 
construction of a single storey side extension and front 
canopy extension with ramp. 

Location: 24 Sunnybank Road  Sandfields  Neath Port Talbot  
SA12 6JQ     

Decision: Approved 

Page 72



Ward: Sandfields East 
 

App No:  P2024/0713 

Proposal: Change of use to office space (B1). 
Location: 18 -20 Second Floor  Station Road  Port Talbot  Neath 

Port Talbot  SA13 1JB   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0717 

Proposal: Application for a change of use from current class A2 
(office) to Sui Generis (tattoo art studio). 

Location: 36 Forge Road  Port Talbot  SA13 1NU       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0721 

Proposal: Application for an extension to an existing single storey 
rear flat roof extension. 

Location: 3 Tollgate Road  Margam  Neath Port Talbot  SA13 
2DD     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0722 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension, front porch extension and 
new side door 

Location: 16 Handel Avenue  Sandfields  Neath Port Talbot  
SA12 7SY     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2024/0728 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 4 
(material details - specified on application form), 6 
(private sewerage treatment plant) and 8 (construction 
method statement) of application P2024/0370 granted 
on 18/10/2024. 

Page 73



Location: Land To The East Of Dan Y Bryn  Maesteg Road  Bryn  
Neath Port Talbot  SA13 2RW   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0729 

Proposal: Works to x1 Oak tree (identified as T1) protected by 
Tree Preservation Order no.T021. Remove lowest 
limbs back to main stem. Reduce remaining upper 
canopy by approximately 1m to a suitable growth point. 

Location: 76 Brynau Wood  Cimla  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 3YQ     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2024/0739 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 3 
(Scheme of tree replanting) and 4 (Construction 
Environmental Management Plan) of planning 
application P2024/0496 (for a Micro hydroelectric 
installation) approved on 26/09/2024 

Location: Plas Farm   Lane From Church Road To Plas Farm  
Rhos  Pontardawe  SA8 3JQ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2024/0741 

Proposal: Works to two Scots Pine (identified as T3 and T4) 
covered by Tree Preservation Orders T326/T12 and 
T326/T13.  
Crown lift on both trees by 2-3m and reduce back 
southern branches enroaching garden area by 2-3m. 

Location: Land To Rear Of  Heol Alfred Wallace  Rhos  
Pontardawe  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2024/0743 

Proposal: Installation of a 6.5m high CCTV column and camera 

Page 74



Location: Pavement Adjacent To Commercial Street And 
Entrance To Drop Off Point At Rear Of Neath Train 
Station, Neath           

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0746 

Proposal: Proposed Lawful Development Certificate - 4m Rear 
Extension (Family Room) 

Location: 53 Heol Y Nant  Baglan  Neath Port Talbot  SA12 8ET     
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2024/0755 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 8 
(Ecological Surveys) of planning application 
P2024/0060 for an outfall, headwall and associated 
development, granted on 29th May 2024 

Location: Land Near Trebanos  Neath Port Talbot  SA7 9JE       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Trebanos 

 

App No:  P2024/0758 

Proposal: Proposed Lawful Development Certificate for a single 
storey rear extension. 

Location: 120 Bryn Morgrug  Alltwen  Pontardawe  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA8 3DP   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2024/0762 

Proposal: Request for Screening opinion under Regulation 6 of 
the Town and Country Planning (Environment Impact 
Assessment) (Wales) Regulations 2017 for a proposed 
hydrogen refuelling station 

Location: Land East Of Amazon  Ffordd Amazon  Crymlyn 
Burrows  Neath Port Talbot  SA1 8QX   

Decision: Not EIA Development 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

Page 75



 

App No:  P2024/0764 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 10 
(materials) of planning permission P2023/0958 
determined on 23/05/2024. 

Location: 7 Ten Acre Wood  Margam  Neath Port Talbot  SA13 
2SU     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0769 

Proposal: Proposed Lawful Development Certificate for a new 
rear single storey extension 

Location: 60 Darwin Road  Sandfields  Neath Port Talbot  SA12 
6BS     

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2024/0771 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 3 
(Demolition & Construction Method Statement), 4 
(gigabit capable broadband infrastructure) of 
P2023/0632 granted on 24/07/24. 

Location: 9 Primrose Lane  Rhos  Pontardawe  Neath Port Talbot  
SA8 3ES   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2024/0772 

Proposal: Non-material amendment to condition 1 of planning 
permission P2023/0466 dated 30.11.2023 to change 
the temporary extension of the operating hours (into 
the evenings/weekends) to no later than 12 months 
from the date of commencement of the use (new 
carbonaceous fire behaviour training facility) 

Location: Earlswood Depot   Earlswood Depot Access Road  
Jersey Marine  Neath Port Talbot  SA10 6NG   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

Page 76



 

App No:  P2024/0780 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 21 - 
solar panels of planning application P2022/0692 
granted on 16.6.2022. 

Location: 38 - 42 Wind Street  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 
3HA     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0783 

Proposal: Non-Material Amendment to planning permission  
P2024/0496 condition 2 (list of approved plans)  
granted consent on 26.9.24 -  amendment to intake 
position within the watercourse. 

Location: Plas Farm  Lane From Church Road To Plas Farm  
Rhos  Pontardawe  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2024/0789 

Proposal: Prior Notification for demolition of Buildings. 
Location: Phoenix Wharf   Harbour Way  Port Talbot   Neath Port 

Talbot  SA13 1RA   
Decision: Prior Notification Approval Not Required 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0790 

Proposal: Prior Notification Application for the demolition of 
Pontardawe swimming pool 

Location: George Street V Park  Hopkin Street  Pontardawe  
Neath Port Talbot  SA8 4JE   

Decision: Prior Notification Approval Required 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0803 

Page 77



Proposal: Discharge of condition 17 (coal risk safety declaration) 
of planning permission P2023/0101 granted on 
16.08.2024 (for the erection of a freestanding drive-
thru/restaurant, car parking, landscaping and 
associated works) 

Location: Tesco Supermarket   Alltwen  Pontardawe  Swansea  
SA8 3AZ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2024/0820 

Proposal: Non-material amendment pursuant of planning 
permission P2018/0493 granted on 18th January 2022, 
seeking to alter the wording of Conditions 2 and 3 of 
that planning permission.  The proposed amendments 
are to revise the wording of the conditions to read: 
 
Condition 2 
The first application for approval of reserved matters 
shall be made to the Local Planning authority not later 
than three years from the date of this permission 
Condition 3 
The first phase of development shall begin before the 
expiration of five years from the date of this permission. 

Location: Land At Pen Y Bryn   Croeserw   Cymmer   Port Talbot     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cymmer & GlyncorrwgCymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

Page 78


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Application No. P2024/ 0626- 60-61 Afan Road, Duffryn Rhondda, Neath Port Talbot, SA13 3ET
	6 Application No. P2024/0234 - Land To The West Of Danygraig Lane, Glynneath, SA11 5LG.
	7 Appeals Determined - 9 December 2024 to 20 January 2025
	8 Delegated Decisions - 9 December 2024 to 20 January 2025

